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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 41‘! (Forty First) Annual General Meeting “AGM” of the Company is 

scheduled to be held on Monday, 29% September, 2025 at 11:00 AM at the registered office of the Company 

situated at 25 C- Block Community Centre Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 to transact the following 

business(es): 

  

      
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company comprising of Balance 

Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2025 along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor's thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Honey Parwal, (DIN No. 00025835) who retires by rotation in 

accordance with Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers herself for re- 

appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Approval for Related Party Transactions 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following Resolution as a Special 

Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and other 

applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014, as amended till date and pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") as applicable and the 

Company's policy on Related Party transaction approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the 

Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with the related 

party/parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, 

for purchase/sale of goods and/or services/other transactions etc, on such terms and conditions as the Board of 

Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 50 Crore each financial year with each related 

party, provided that the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm's length 

basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and are hereby severally authorized on behalf of 

the Company, to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Committee of the Board or any 

Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as deem necessary, 

proper or desirable as may be required in connection to aforesaid resolution and to sign and execute all 

necessary documents, applications and returns along with filing of necessary E-form with the respective 

Registrar of Companies if any, and filing of documents with respective regulatory authorities. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board or Committee(s) duly constituted for this 

purpose in connection with any matter(s) referred to or contemplated in the foregoing resolution be and are 

hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects." 

 



  

4. Appointment of M/s HKB & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of 

the Company 

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 204 and 179(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed thereunder, 

Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any 

statutory modification(s), re-enactment thereof for time being in force) and circulars issued thereunder from 

time to time, and based on the recommendation and approval of the Audit Committee and the Board of 

Directors, M/s HKB & Associates, a peer reviewed Company Secretary in Practice having Certificate No. 

21001 be and is hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for conducting Secretarial Audit for a 

term of 5 (Five ) consecutive years effective from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, on uch remuneration as 

mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Secretarial Auditors.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (which term shall mclude any Committee of the 

Board authorised in this regard) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 

may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms or submission of documents 

with any authority or accepting any modifications to the clauses as required by such authorities, for the purpose 

of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith, or incidental thereto.” 

By the order of the Board of 
SPA Capital Services Limited 

    
Sandeep Parwal 
(Chairman cum Managing Director) 

DIN: 00025803 

Date: 02/09/2025 

Place: New Delhi 

Registered Office: 
25 C- Block Community Centre 

Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 
Email ID: listing@spacapital.com 

Website: www.spacapital.com 

   



  

  

NOTES: 

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the 41* Annual General Meeting (the "Meeting") is also entitled to 

appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a Member of the 

Company. 

A BLANK PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED. 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not 

more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding 

more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 

person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other member. The instrument of Proxy in 

order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and 

signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting. Proxies submitted 

on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/ authority, as 

applicable. 

The Instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and be signed by the appointer or his/her attorney 

duly authorized in writing or, if the appointer is a body corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an 

officer or an attorney duly authorized by it. 

Proxies submitted on behalf of companies, societies, partnership firms etc. must be supported by 

appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable, issued by the member. 

2. Queries proposed to be raised at the Annual General Meeting may be sent to the Company at its registered 

office at least seven days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting to enable the management to compile 

the relevant information to reply the same in the meeting. 

3. Members/Proxies/Authorised Persons attending the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company are 

requested to hand over the Attendance Slip duly filled in for admission to the AGM hall. 

4. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 

will be entitled to vote. 

5. Members holding Shares in demat/electronic form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID and 

those holding Shares in physical form are requested to write their folio number in the attendance slip and 

deliver duly signed attendance slip at the entrance of the meeting hall. 

6. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and 

ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any 

time during the business hours of the company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is 

given to the Company. 

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 

170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General 

Meeting. 

8. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 

of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General 

Meeting. 

9. No gifts, gifts coupons, or cash in lieu of gifts is distributed in the Meeting. 

   



  

  

10. 

11. 

12, 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

Corporate/institutional Members (1.c. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) intending to send their 

authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send certified true copy of the Board 

Resolution/Authority Letter, together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized 

representative(s), to the Company to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection at the registered office of the Company 

between 11:00 A.M to 1:00 P.M. on all working days up to the date of Annual General Meeting. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) no amount is 

unclaimed towards dividend to any shareholder. 

Members are requested to intimate immediately the change of address or demise of any Member, if any, to 

the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents or Depository Participant, as the case may be to prevent 

frauds. 

Statement giving details of the Director seeking appointment/ re-appointment is also annexed with this 

Notice pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’) and Secretarial Standard 

on General Meeting ("SS-2"). 

Pursuant to Regulation 46(2) (j) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 

2015 the Company has created an exclusive E-mail ID: listing@spacapital.com for quick redressal of 

Members/investors grievances. 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from September 

22, 2025 to September 29, 2025 (both days inclusive). 

Members/Proxies should bring their copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting and also the 

duly filled in and signed attendance slip for attending the meeting. 

Shareholders, who are holding shares in identical order of name in more than one folio, are requested to 

write to the Company enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holding 

in one folio. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings 

to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio 

management. Members may contact the Company or RTA for assistance in this regard. 

Members who are holding Company's shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring details of their 

Depository Account Number for identification. 

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, Members who hold shares in the physical form can 

nominate a person in respect of all the shares held by them singly or jointly. Members who hold shares in 

single name are advised, in their own interest, to avail of the nomination facility by filling form SH-13. 

Members holding shares in the dematerialized form may contact their Depository Participant for recording 

the nomination in respect of their holdings. 

For convenience of the members and proper conduct of the meeting, entry to the meeting venue will be 

regulated by Attendance Slip. Members are requested to sign at the space provided in the Attendance Slip 

and hand it over at the registration counter. 

In terms of SEBI notification, the shares of the Company are subject to compulsory trading only in 

dematerialized form on the stock exchange hence members are requested to convert their physical share 

certificates into electronic form. 

   



  

  

23, 

24. 

2): 

26. 

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, the shareholders of the Company may nominate a 

person to whom the shares held by him shall vest in the event of his death. 

Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform RTA, immediately of: 

a) | Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement or 

b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, 

account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 

therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 

their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the 

Company / Share Transfer Agent (RTA), MAS Services Limited, T-34, 2™4 Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase-II New Delhi - 110020 at sm@masserv.com, Ph +91-11- 2638728 1/82/83. 

Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made there 

under, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to those 

members who have registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with the Depository. 

Members who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company can now register the same by 

submitting a request letter in this respect to the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s MAS 

Services Limited. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to register their e-mail address with 

their Depository Participant(s) only. 

The Notice of AGM along with annual report and Attendance Slip are being sent in electronic mode to 

members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s) unless the 

members have registered their request for a hard copy of the same. Physical copies of the Notice of AGM 

along with annual report and Attendance Slip are being sent to those members who have not registered their 

e-mail IDs with the Company or Depository Participant(s). 

   



  

  

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2014 as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment, 

Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 

2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their rights to vote on resolutions 

proposed in this notice by electronic means ("remote e-voting") and the business may be transacted through e- 

voting services, the said resolutions will not be decided on a show of hands at the AGM. The Company has 

engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide remote e-voting facilities 

and for security and enabling the members to cast their vote in a secure manner. 

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under: - In case of members receiving e- 

mail: 

The voting period begins on Friday, 26, September, 2025 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on Sunday, 28, September, 

2025 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Monday, 22 September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. 

The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ Click on 

"Shareholders / Members" tab to cast your votes. 

ii) Now Enter your User ID 

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary, 

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client, 

c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

ii) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

iv) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to https:/Avww.evoting.nsdl.com/ and voted   

on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

v) Ifyou are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

  

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 

shareholders). 

Members who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number which is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip indicated in 

the PAN field. 

  

Dividend Bank Details or Date of | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth in (dd/mm/yyyy) 

Birth (DOB) format as recorded in the company records in order to login. 

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company 

please of Birth enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 

details field as mentioned in instruction (i).         

vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab. 

vii) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they 

are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this 

password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 

which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for remote e-voting through NDSL platform . 

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confidential. 

   



  

  

Vili) 

ix) 

x) 

X1) 

Xli) 

xiii) 

Xiv) 

Xv) 

XVI) 

Xvi) 

XV111) 

XIX) 

Xx) 

XX1) 

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for remote e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

Click on the EVSN for on which you choose to vote. 

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option 

"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 

to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will 

be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on 

"CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote. 

Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the 

Voting page. 

If demat account holder has forgotten the login password then enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the 

QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience. Please follow the instructions as prompted by 

the mobile app while voting on your mobile. 

NSDL mobile app is available on 

é App Store - Google Play 

  

Note for Non- Individual Shareholders and Custodians : 

e Non Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to 

https:/Awww.evoting.nsdl.com/ and register themselves as Corporate.   

e Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 

to evoting@nsdl.com 

e After recerving the login details a Compliance user should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

The list of accounts linked in the login should be emailed to helpdesk evoting@nsdl.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 

verify the same. 

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or 

write an email to helpdesk evoting‘@nsdl.com. 

In case of members receiving the physical copy: 

Please follow all steps serial no. (i) to serial no. (xvii) above to cast vote. 

The shareholders can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e. either ballot voting by- attending AGM or 

remote e-voting. If any shareholders opt for remote e-voting, he/she will not be eligible to vote 

physically in AGM. However members who are attending the meeting who have not already cast their 

vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting. 

The official responsible to address the grievances connected with voting by electronic means - Ms. 

Vaishnavi Sharma, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, Ph . No. 011-4567 5500, email: 

listing(@spacapital.com 

Company shall publish the result of remote e-voting & the resolutions passed at its general meeting on 

its Website. 

   



  

  

2. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. Mohan Upreti and co., Company Secretary in Practice (FCS 

4179), COP NO: 26571, as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in a 

fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer shall within a period of three working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period 

unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and 

prepare the scrutinizer report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman and in 

his absence to the Company Secretary of the Company. 

The result of voting shall be declared by the Chairman/Company Secretary of the meeting on or after the 

Annual General Meeting of the Company (within two working days of conclusion of AGM). The results 

declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website 

https:/Avww.spacapital.com/and on the website of the NSDL immediately after the result is declared by the 

Chairman/Company Secretary. 

The result will also be communicated to stock exchange where the shares of the Company are listed. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a "Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance" by allowing 

paperless compliances by the Companies and as per Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 allowed Companies to send any notice/document (including Annual Report) to 

its members through e-mail. In order to support the same members hereby requested to register, update and 

provide their respective operational e-mail id to RTA i.e. MAS Services Limited or/and their respective 

Depository Participant (DP's). 

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018 dated June 8, 2018 and others respective allied Acts, rules and 

regulations as amended thereof, members holding shares in physical form are hereby requested to urgently 

convert them in Dematerialization form by requesting the RTA 1.c. MAS Services Limited or/and their 

respective Depository Participant (DP's). 

In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company read with Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Ms. Honey Parwal, (DIN No. 00025835), Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company 

recommends her re-appointment. Details of Director, who is proposed to be re-appointed at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting, as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2, are as under: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Name of Director Ms. Honey Parwal 

Date of Birth 18/06/1970 

Age 55 Years 

DIN 00025835 

Date of first appointment in Board 25/09/2017 

Expertise in specific functional area She is having a rich experience of over two 

decades in the field of Human Resource, 
Administration and Management   

  

    
Qualifications B.Sc. (Hons.) 

Terms and Conditions of appointment or re- appointment | To be appointed as Non - Executive Director 

along with details of remuneration sought to be paid being eligible to retire by rotation at such 

remuneration as may be decided by the Board 

Last drawn remuneration NIL     
  

   



  

  

Directorship in other Companies e Bhoopati Trading Private Limited 

Bluemoon Financial Services Private 

Limited 

SPA Capital Advisors Limited 

Simplex Construction Private Limited 

Viay Shree Builders Private Limited 

Wintech Marketing Private Limited 

Parth Infracon Private Limited 

  

No. of Board Meetings attended during the year 2024-25 | 6 (Six) 
  

Membership/Chairmanship of the Committees across the | Details as specified in Board Report 

Companies 
  

Relationship with other Directors Spouse of Mr. Sandeep Parwal, Chairman Cum 

Managing Director of the Company 
  

Shareholding in the Company (including shareholding as | 1,75,000 Equity Shares (5.69 %) Equity Shares 
beneficial owner) 
    Brief Resume Ms. Honey Parwal holds a Bachelor of Science 

(Honors) degree and brings over two decades 

of extensive experience in Human Resources, 
Administration, and Management.     

  

For other details such as number of meetings of the board attended during the year and remuneration drawn 

in respect of above director, please refer to the Directors report which 1s a part of the Annual Report. 

  

  

 



  

  

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Item No.3 

To Approve the Related Party Transactions of the Company 

To ensure smooth operation of the Company, your Company proposes to enter into transaction(s) with 

related party/parties as defined in Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable. The total value of the proposed related party transaction(s) 

could reach up to Rs. 50 Crore each financial year with each related party. 

Section 188 of the Act and the applicable Rules framed there under provide that any Related Party 

Transaction will require prior approval of shareholders through resolution, if the aggregate value of 

transaction(s) amounts to 10% or more of the annual turnover of the Company as per last audited financial 

statements of the Company. 

Hence, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaction(s) proposed to 

be entered into by your Company. Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 

Rules, 2014, as amended till date, particulars of the transaction(s) are available on the website of the 

Company i.e. https:/Avww.spacapital.com/archive/CapitalServices/. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, other 

than as mentioned above is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise except as aforesaid, in the 

resolution. 

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution as set out at item no. 3 of this Notice as 

Special Resolution. 

Item No. 4 

Appointment of M/s HKB & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of 

the Company 

Pursuant to the amended provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) vide 

SEBI Notification dated December 12, 2024 and provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(‘Act’) and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, a listed entity shall appoint or reappoint an individual as Secretarial Auditor, on the basis of the 

recommendation of the Board of Directors, for not more than one term of five consecutive years or a 

Secretarial Audit firm as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two terms of five consecutive years, with the 

approval of its shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

M/s HKB & Associates are currently the Secretarial Auditors of the Company and as per Regulation 24A 

(1C) of the Listing Regulations, any association of the individual or the firm as the Secretarial Auditor of 

the listed entity before March 31, 2025 shall not be considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure. 

Accordingly, pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the 

Company at its meeting held on 2"! September, 2025 have approved the appointment of M/s. HKB & 

Associates (COP No. 21001), a peer reviewed firm of Company Secretaries in Practice as Secretarial 

Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years effective from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029- 

30 on such remuneration as may be agreed between the Board and the Secretarial auditor. 
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None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding, 

if any, in the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item 

No. 4 for approval of the members as an Ordinary Resolution. 

By the order of the Board of 

SPA Capital Services Limited 

  

Sandeep Parwal 
(Chairman cum Managing Director) 

DIN: 00025803 

Date: 02/09/2025 

Place: New Delhi 

Registered Office: 
25 C- Block Community Centre 

Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 
Email ID: listing(@spacapital.com 

Website: www.spacapital.com 
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ROUTE MAP FOR 415? ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Venue: 25 C- Block Community Centre Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

   

  

  

     
      

  

      

  

   
  

    

~— i = cr 
ibri, Metro’Station ? Ser, 7 eo 
> Ging °C amills Ground 

\ Orchid/Hospital > 
©) Wiaterity and Heart 9 2 

e oaths es 
= 9 ‘€3.Park x 

6 oe ae 3 Park 
“\ es ‘ Yan, 

Puy 
Re. > 

ae 
= x 

2p; 
> Mor, “ “ap, - 
2 Oy... Chip a , r 

cE ®. t 
Ay Dabri Fish, Chicken s hy, o 

oe and Seafood Market & Ra > é eS 
- 1 watt ara = ~ + <= 

qa ates rae 3 ~ a, 2 & 

2. Akash fitness Gym Co Pang ~ > E 

GaliNumbers arene cae aR Ne 98 ky oR = SPA Capital °o ony | S 
Rana Ji Rd a S ~ ro. O Services Limited DesiicolonyRdy 

» Dare OP an, pte = 
St Number 4 213 izkg ei 2 

Ries s 
Nay, StreetNo.6 zy ( jesu colonyiparks Oo Ry 6 3 Panny OI) xa ach rk : 

. e age 
= Ra t 

athist I 
C5, St/No. 13 “ 

"No 

ova Street Number 1 fy ~~ 
© = Vv yr. 5 vow > ng ey 

Sy RN Sie e ng 2 te NOL. Street Number 3 2 a RE 
So leig ae BE ES 3 = 
a 2a 3 s i. < 

> = e Street Number 4 eee ee _ Cartwheel ie 
< 2 a < @ Street Number 5 S=8"6-S a Shop, New Delhi 

xs os ° ~~ \Cricket shop 
o So 2 2 Street 17: - 

a o Nala Rd 5. 2 5 RZRd 
3 o iris PG 

n = Ziad 
o 3 & ¢ E Sahelikart © 

GaliNumber7 ‘2 GaliNumber2 ie ¥ 
E a 4 € 
= 3s Sy, + 
= 2 My 
5 a CLS. An, - 

Nasinn oy 4 es, = 
u: a ; a "Ra Godgle °’o, 8) Re 8 

~ Ve, Y ~ = ~ + 
Cp). Se “m6, Map data ©2025 india Terms Privacy Send Product Feedback 100m 4 
  

  
12 

 



  

  

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

  

SPA CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED 

Regd. Office: 25, C — Block, Community Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi —110058, 

Phone: 011-4567 5500 

E-mail: listing@spacapital.com, Website: http://www.spacapital.com/CapitalServices/ 

CIN-L65910DL1984PLC018749     
  

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE 

MEETING. 

  

DP ID-Client ID*/ Folio No.: 

  

Name of Member: 

  

Name of Proxy holder: 

  

No. of Share(s) held:       
  

I hereby record my presence at the 41°‘ Annual General Meeting of SPA Capital Services Limited held on 

Monday 29" September, 2025 at 25,C-Block, Community Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi —110058 

  

Signature of Shareholder / Proxy 

Notes: 

1. Members / Proxy-holders are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed for admission to the 

Meeting hall. 

2. Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report for reference at the Meeting. 

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 
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Proxy Form 

Form MGT-11 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

  

SPA CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED 

Regd. Office: 25, C — Block, Community Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi -110058, 

Phone: 011-45675500 

E-mail: listing(@spacapital.com, Website: http:/Avww.spacapital.com/CapitalServices/ 

CIN-L65910DL1984PLC018749     
  

41** Annual General Meeting of members of SPA Capital Services Limited on Monday 29" September, 2025 at 25, 

C-Block, Community Centre, Janakpuri New Delhi— 110058, at 11.00 A.M. 

  

IName of the member(s): E-mail Id: 

Registered Address: IDP Id-Client Id*/Folio No 

          
  

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of SPA Capital Services Limited hereby appoint: 

1) Name: 

Address: 

E-mail id: 

Signature: or failing him/her 

  

  

  

2) Name: 

Address: 

E-mail id: 

Signature: or failing him/her 

  

  

  

3) Name: 

Address: 

E-mail id: 

Signature: or failing him/her 
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 41*' Annual General Meeting of the 

Company, to be held on Monday 29" September, 2025 at 25, C — Block, Community Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi — 

110058 and any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

**] wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below: 

  

S.No. Resolutions Type of Resolution For Against 

    
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

  

1. |Adoption of Audited Financial Statements along with the | [Ordinary Resolution 

Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 
  

2. [To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Honey Parwal (DIN: {Ordinary Resolution 

(00025835), who retires by rotation in terms of Section152 (6) 

lof the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers herself 

for re-appointment. 

  

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

  

3. [Approval for Related Party Transactions Special Resolution 

  

4. |Appointment of M/s HKB & Associates, Practicing Company|Ordinary Resolution 

Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company               

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.   

      

Signed this........... day Of... 2025 Affix 
Signature of Shareholder.........................0664 Revenue 

Stamp 

ofRs.1/- 

Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder 

NOTES: 

1. This proxy form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 

Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 

10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total 

share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not 

act as a proxy for any other person of shareholder. 

WwW 
bd 

4. **This is only optional. Please put a ‘X” in the appropriate column against their solutions indicate din the Box. If you 

leave the ‘For or ‘Against’ column blank. 

Against any or all there solutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. 

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should 

be stated. 
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SPA CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED 

Reed. Off. : 25, C-Block, Community Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi —110058 

Email Id: listing@spacapital.com Ph: 011- 4567 5500 

CIN: L65910DL1984PLC018749     

N
e
 

BALLOT FORM 

3. Registered Folio No./D PID-Client ID* 
(*Applicable to members holding shares in Dematerialized form) 

4. No. of shares held 

Name(s) of Shareholder(s)/ Joint Holder (s), if any (In Block Letters): 

Registered Address of the Sole/First named Shareholders /Beneficial Owners: 

5. I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following Resolution(s) set out in the Notice of the 
41s AGM of the Company held on Monday 29" September, 2025 at 25,C — Block, Community Centre, 

Janakpuri, New Delhi — 110058, at 11.00 A.M.- by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said 
Resolution(s) by placing tick (V) mark at the appropriate box below:- 

  

S.No. Resolutions Type of Resolution For Against 

  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

  

J. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements along with the 
Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 

Ordinary Resolution 

  

To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Honey Parwal (DIN: 

(00025835), who retires by rotation in terms of Section152 (6) 

lof the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers herself 

for re-appointment. 

Ordinary Resolution 

  

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

  

3. ‘Approval for Related Party Transactions Special Resolution 

    [Appointment of M/s HKB & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company   Ordinary Resolution           

16 

  

Shareholder



  

Event Calendar pertaining to 41*Annual General Meeting of the Company 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

Sr. yaaa tio) Date 

Oe 

1 22 September, 2025 to 29 September, 2025 (both 

Book Closure days inclusive) 

2. | Record Date 22 September, 2025 

3. | E-voting Cut Off (Eligibility for E-voting) | 22 September, 2025 

4. | AGM Monday, 29September, 2025 (11:00 A.M.) 

5. Bonus NA 

6. | Dividend NA 

Dividend per shares 

Dividend Rate 

7. E-voting Start Date & Time Friday, 26, September, 2025 at 9.00 A.M. 

8. E-voting End Date & Time Sunday, 28, September, 2025 at 5.00 P.M. 

9. | Voting Result Date Within 2 working days of conclusion of     AGM 
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SPA Capital Services Ltd 25, C - Block Community Center 

THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS CIN: L65910DL1984PLC018749 Janakpuri , New Delhi - 110058 
www.spacapital.com Tel. : 011 — 45675500 

Email : info@spacapital.com 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

For the Financial Year 2024-25 

(Pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014) 

To the Members of SPA Capital Services Limited, 

The Directors are pleased to present herewith the 41* Board Report of SPA Capital Services Limited 

(‘the Company’) along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year (“FY”) ended March 

31, 2025. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The summary of the Company’s financial performance, for the Financial Year (“FY”) 2024-25 as 

compared to the previous FY 2023-24 is given below: 

(Rs. in Thousands, except per share data) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

ae vantall eva Year Ended a feibe Ca itelas 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Revenue 3,29.409 2,10,806 

Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Taxation 16,146 7,132 

Interest & Finance Costs 4,177 3,875 

Depreciation & Amortization 1,855 1,344 

Profit from Operations before Exceptional Items and Tax 10,114 2,538 

Exceptional Items 0 625 

Prior Period Items 2,069 0 

Profit before Taxation 8.046 1,913 

Less : Provision for Taxation 

Current Tax 2,550 500 

Deferred Tax 788 (1,583) 

Income Tax for earlier years (237) (806) 

Profit After Taxation 4,945 3,801 

Total other Comprehensive Income 0 0 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 4,945 3,801 

Paid up equity share capital 3,07,423 3,07,423 

(Face value of Rs 10 each) 

Other Equity as per Balance Sheet 1,39,261 1,34,316 

Earnings Per Share 1.61 1.24         
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STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

The Company’s revenue primarily consist of revenue from sale of securities, brokerage income from 

distribution of Mutual Fund, other financial products, income from interest and dividend etc. 

The Main object of the Company is to carry on b usiness activities of leasing and hire-purchase, to 

finance the industrial enterprises by way of lending and advancing money etc., to manage investment 

pools, mutual funds, issue of shares, stocks, securities, etc. The Company is registered with the Reserve 

Bank of India (“RBI”) as a Non-Banking Financial Company — Non Deposit, vide registration no. B- 

14.00790. The Company is also registered as a Mutual Fund Distributor/Advisor and holding AMFI (The 

Association of Mutual Funds in India) Certification. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during its tenure of registration as NBFC- 

Non Deposit. 

During the year, the Company reported total revenue of Rs. 3,29,409 and EBIDTA of Rs. 16,146 (Rs. in 

Thousand) 

OPERATIONS REVIEW 

In order to strengthen its market share, the Company has taken steps to improve the business, operation 

and growth strategy. Besides, efficiency improvement and cost optimization have been followed 
vigorously across all the functions of the organization, across the Country during the year. 

It is one of the fastest growing financial service oriented company in India and enjoys strong brand equity 

from customers across segments/services. 

During the year under review, the Company continued to focus on enhancing the capability of the 

organization and towards the achievement of this goal, the Company has been taking a number of 

initiatives. 

DIVIDEND 

Keeping in view the requirements of the Company for future, your Directors do not recommend any 

dividend for the financial year 2024-25 under the review. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

During the Financial Year under review, the Board of Directors does not propose to transfer any 

amount to the general reserve of the Company. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

No material changes and commitments have occurred from the date of close of the financial year till the 

date of this Report, which might affect the financial position of the Company. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 31** March, 2025 was Rs. 50,000,000/- (Rupees Five 

Crore Only). The paid - up share capital of the Company as on 31* March, 2025 was Rs. 30,742,250/- 

(Rupees Three Crore Seven Lakh Forty Two Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Only) divided into 30,74,225 

(Thirty Lakh Seventy Four Thousand Two Hundred Twenty Five) shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten each) 

each. 

During the year, the Company has not made any alteration in share capital of the Company. 
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TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

In the FY 2024-25, no amount has been transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in 

pursuance of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME 

During the FY 2024-25, the Company has not issued any Employee Stock Options. Hence, no ESOP 

scheme Is in existence as on 31.03.2025. 

Therefore, the information is not required to be disclosed under SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits 

and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 as on March 31, 2025. 

BONUS ISSUE 

During the FY 2024-25, the Company has not allotted/transferred or issued any bonus shares. 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS, IF ANY 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the FY 2024-25. However, the 

Company is planning to broaden its operations by adopting competitive business strategy for 

strengthening existence and to reach amongst the larger consumer base to enhance its turnover and 

operating revenue. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has in place, an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size, 

requirements and the nature of operations. These systems are designed keeping in view the nature of 

activities carried out at each location and various business operations. 

The Internal Auditor of the Company carries out internal audits at all, offices, across all locations of the 

country. Their objective is to assess the existence, adequacy and operation of financial and operating 
controls set up by the Company and to ensure compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015) (to the 

extent as applicable) and corporate policies. 

A summary of all significant findings by the audit department/auditor along with the follow-up actions 

undertaken thereafter is placed before the Audit Committee for review. The Audit Committee reviews the 
comprehensiveness and effectiveness of the report and provides valuable suggestions and keeps the Board 

of Directors informed about its major observations, from time to time. 

NTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Company has in place adequate financial controls commensurate with its size, scale and complexity 

of its operations. The Company has in place policies and procedures required to properly and efficiently 

conduct its business, safeguard its assets, detect frauds and errors, maintain accuracy and completeness of 

accounting records and prepare financial records in a timely and reliable manner. 

SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Board wishes to inform you that Segment Reporting is not applicable to the Company. 

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

The Cash Flow Statement for the year, under reference in terms of Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 is annexed with the Annual Accounts of the Company. 
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any subsidiary and joint venture Company during the financial year 2024-25. 

Further, Booming Investment Advisor Private Limited (Formerly known as SPA Investment Adviser 

Private Limited) ceased to be the Associate of the Company during the current Financial Year by the 

virtue of transfer of shares reducing the holding of your Company from 40.2% to 4.95%. 

DEPOSITS 

In FY 2024-25 the Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of 

provisions of Section 73 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 

amended). 

The particulars of loans/advances, etc., required to be disclosed in the Annual Accounts of the Company 

pursuant to Para A of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations are furnished in the Notes to Accounts 

annexed to Financial Statements which forms part of this Annual Report. 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has mandated SS-1 and SS-2 with respect to Board meetings and 

General meetings respectively. The Company is in compliance with the same. 

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Statutory Audit 

M/s Dhana & Associates, Chartered Accountants, holding FRN: 510525C, Statutory Auditors of the 

Company, shall hold office until the conclusion of 44" AGM of the Company. 

The Auditor’s have put certain qualifications in their report to which the management has put forward the 

below mentioned replies; 

Qualification and response to Auditor’s Report 

> The company has taken various loans, which were outstanding as on 31* March, 2025. The 

management has not provided the interest on some of the loans, which constitute a departure from the 

Accrual basis of accounting. The company’s records indicate that an amount of Rs. 7,753/-(in 

Thousands) for the year ended on March 31, 2025 has not been provided as interest expenses on these 

loans, which would have decreased the profit by Rs. 7,753/- (in Thousands) for the year ended on 

March 31, 2025 and also increased the loan liability by same amount. 

w The company has given loans to various parties, which were outstanding as on 31*t March, 2025 of 

Rs. 31,420/- (in Thousands), however the company has not charged any interest on such loans given 

by the company, so in absence of the same the loans are loss assets as per the NBFC guidelines issued 

by RBI, however the company has not made any Provision for loss assets, which constitute a 

departure from the NBFC guidelines and in view of the same the company’s records indicate that 

profit of the company is overstated by Rs. 31,420 (in Thousands) on account of non-provision of loss 

assets and also the provision for loss assets is understated by Rs. 31,420 (in Thousands) and the loan 
assets are overstated by Rs. 31,420 (in Thousands) for the year ended on March 31, 2025 

Management Response: 

Interest of Rs. 7,753/- (in Thousands) has not been provided in the books as the there is some dispute 

going on with the concemed parties and management is of the view that no provision of interest is 

required in the books of accounts. 

   



  

  

The Companies to whom loans are provided are not doing good in terms of current operations. Due to this 

interest has not been provided on the request of the parties but management is of the view that principle 

will be recovered. Due to this provision has not been provided in the books. 

Secretarial Audit 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed M/s. 

HKB & Associates, A firm of Company Secretaries in Practice (COP No.: 21001) , having office at 

1/10072 D/B, St. No. 3J, DDA Colony, West Gorakh Park, Shahdara, Delhi-110032, as Secretarial 

auditor of the Company to undertake the Secretarial Audit for FY 2024-25. The secretarial audit report 

certified by the secretarial auditors, in the specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith and forms part of this 

report and enclosed as Annexure - I. 

The Secretarial audit report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks. 

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITOR UNDER SECTION 143 (12) OTHER THAN THOSE 

WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

There are no such frauds reported by the auditor, which are committed against the Company by officers or 

employees of the Company. 

CONSERVATION ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

OUTGO 

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 

outgo required to be given pursuant to the provision of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 are as under: 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

a) Company ensures that all its operations are conducted in the manner whereby optimum utilization 

and maximum possible savings of energy 1s achieved. 

b) No specific investment has been made on reduction in energy consumption. 
c) As the impact of measures taken for conservation and optimum utilization of energy are not 

quantitative, its impact on cost cannot be stated accurately. 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

a) The Company is continuously making efforts for adaptation of latest technology at its unit to 

improve the performance 

b) No major benefits have derived by the Company through Technology Absorption during the period 

under review 

c) The Company has not imported any technology from the beginning of this financial year 2024-25. 

Therefore, no such disclosure on details of technology imported, year of import and absorption of 

technology are applicable. 

d) During the year the company has not made any expenditure on research & development. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: NIL 

ANNUAL RETURN 

In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Copy of the annual return in form MGT-7 

is uploaded on the website of the company 1.e. https:/Avww_spacapital.com/CapitalServices/.   
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the applicability of Corporate Social Responsibility obligations 

is determined based on specific financial thresholds. 

For the financial year 24-25, the Company does not meet the criteria specified under Section 135(1) of 

the Act relating to net worth, turnover, or net profit. Accordingly, the provisions relating to Corporate 

Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company for the said period. 

The Company, however, remains committed to ethical business practices and continues to contribute to 

social and environmental causes voluntarily, wherever feasible. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 149 of the Act read with rules made thereunder, with an optimum combination of Executive, 

Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Board’s actions and decisions are aligned with the 

Company’s best interests. 

During the year under review, the Board Comprises of following directors as on 31*t March 2025: 

  

  

  

        

Mr. Sandeep Parwal (DIN: 00025803) Chairman Cum Managing Director 

Ms. Honey Parwal (DIN: 00025835) Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Mahaveer Prasad Mundhra (DIN: 00642941) Independent Director 

Ms. Sugeeta Upadhaya (DIN: 08807969) Independent Director   

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director, as specified in 

Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. All the Independent Directors have submitted their declaration to 

the Board confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (to the extent as applicable). 

Director(s) liable to retire by rotation 

In accordance with provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made 

thereunder, Ms. Honey Parwal, (DIN No. 00025835), Non-Executive Director is liable to retire by 

rotation at the 41* Annual General Meeting “AGM” and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

A brief resume of Ms. Honey Parwal proposed to be re-appointed, is provided in the Notice of the Annual 
General Meeting forming part of this Annual report. 

Details of KMP 

As on 31*t March, 2025, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as per Section 2(51) and 

203 of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows: 

  

Mr. Sandeep Parwal Chairman Cum Managing Director 
  

Mr. Manish Kumar Company Secretary & Compliance Officer         

Changes in Directors and KMP 

During the year under review, there was no change in the composition. However, after the closure of the 
Financial Year, Mr. Manish Kumar tendered his resignation on 7" April, 2025 from the position of 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company and Ms. Vaishnavi Sharma was appointed in 

his position with effect from 17" April, 2025. 
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

The Board of Directors held Six (6) board meetings during the year on 29.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 

05.09.2024, 12.10.2024, 13.11.2024, 12.02.2025.The intervening time gap between the meetings was 

within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Independent Directors have given declaration to the Company under Section 149(7) of the Act that 

they meet the criteria of independence as given in Section 149(6) of the Act read with rules made 

thereunder and Regulations 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and were independent of the 
Management as prescribed in the Act. The Independent Directors have complied with the ‘Code for 

Independent Directors’ as prescribed in Schedule IV of the Act. The Independent Directors in their 

disclosures have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situation which exists or may 
be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the 

disclosures received from Independent Directors, the Board is of the opinion that the Independent 

Directors are independent of the management and possess highest standards of integrity; requisite 

expertise and experience (including proficiency) required to fulfil their duties as Independent Directors. 

OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND 

EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR 

  

During the financial year under review, the Company did not appoint any new Independent Directors. 

Accordingly, this section is not applicable for the year. However, the Board continues to affirm that the 

existing Independent Directors possess the requisite integrity, expertise, experience, and proficiency as 

required under applicable laws and have effectively contributed to the governance and decision-making 

processes of the Company. 

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Separate meeting of the Independent Directors is held without the attendance of non-independent 

directors and members of management to review and evaluate the performance of non-independent 

directors and the Board as whole. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Company has constituted/re-constituted various Board level committees in accordance with the 

requirements of Companies Act 2013. The Board has the following committees as under: 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Committees of the Board usually meet on the day of the Board meeting, or whenever the need arises 

for transacting business. 

As on 31“ March, 2025, the Audit Committee comprises of following members: 

  

  

  

      

Mr. Sandeep Parwal Managing Director 

Mr. Mahaveer Prasad Mundhra Independent Director 

Ms. Sugeeta Upadhaya Independent Director   
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As on 31* March, 2025, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of following members: 

  

  

  

      

Ms. Honey Parwal Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Mahaveer Prasad Mundhra Independent Director 

Ms. Sugeeta Upadhaya Independent Director 
  

As on 31* March, 2025, Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of following members: 

  

  

  

      

Mr. Sandeep Parwal Managing Director 

Mr. Mahaveer Prasad Mundhra Independent Director 

Ms. Sugeeta Upadhaya Independent Director 
  

BOARD INDUCTION, TRAINING AND FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR 

  

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Prior to the appointment of an Independent Director, the Company sends a formal invitation along with a 

detailed note on the profile of the Company, the Board structure and other relevant information. At the 

time of appointment of the Director, a formal letter of appointment which infer-alia explains the role, 

functions, and responsibilities expected of him/her as a Director of the Company is given. The Director is 
also explained in detail about the various compliances required from him/ her as a Director under the 

various provisions of the Companies Act 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Code of Conduct of the Company and other relevant regulations. 

A Director, upon appointment, is formally inducted to the Board. In order to familiarize the Independent 

Directors about the various business drivers, they are updated through presentations at Board Meetings 

about the performance and Financials of the Company. They are also provided presentations/booklets 

about the business and operations of the Company. 

The Directors are also updated on the changes in relevant corporate laws relating to their roles and 

responsibilities as Directors. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Guidance note on Board 

evaluation issued by SEBI vide its circular dated January 5, 2017, the Company has framed a policy for 
evaluating the annual performance of its Directors, Chairman, the Board as a whole, and the various 

Board Committees. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has laid down 

parameters for performance evaluation in the policy, including but not limited to: 

e Attendance 

e Preparedness for the meeting 

e Staying updated on developments 

e Active participation in meetings 

e Constructive contributions/positive attributes 

e Engaging with and challenging management team without being confrontational or obstructive 

e Protection of stakeholder interests 

e Contribution to strategic planning 

e Carrying out responsibilities as per the code of conduct 

The Board also evaluated the performance of each of the Directors, the Chairman, the Board as whole and 

all committees of the Board. The Independent Director evaluated the performance of Non Independent 

Directors at their Separate Board Meeting. The process of evaluation is carried out in accordance with the 

Board Evaluation Policy of the Company and as per criteria suggested by SEBI. 
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WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established an effective whistle blower policy (vigil mechanism) and procedures for its 
Directors and employees to safeguard their interests. REMUNERATION POLICY 

The remuneration policy of the Company aims to attract, retain and motivate qualified people at the 

executive and at the board levels. The remuneration policy seeks to employ people who not only fulfil the 

eligibility criteria but also have the attributes needed to fit into the corporate culture of the Company. The 

remuneration policy also seeks to provide well-balanced and performance related compensation packages, 

taking into account shareholder interests, industry standards and relevant regulations. 

The remuneration policy ensures that the remuneration to the directors, key managerial personnel and the 

senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term 

performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals. The remuneration policy 
is consistent with the ‘pay-for-performance’ principle. The Company’s policy on remuneration and 

appointment of Board members as mentioned in the Remuneration Policy has been disclosed at the 

company’s website http:/Avww.spacapital.com/CapitalServices/and annexed with the Directors’ Report 

which forms part of the Annual Report as Annexure IT. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year were at arm’s length. 
For the Financial year 2024-25, the Audit Committee had granted an omnibus approval for transactions 

which were repetitive in nature for one financial year and all such omnibus approvals were reviewed by 

the Audit Committee on a periodic basis. No material contracts or arrangements with related parties were 

entered into during the year under review. All related party transactions were placed at the meetings of 

Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for the necessary review and approval. Your Company’s 

policy on related party transactions, as approved by the Board, can be accessed at: 
http://www.spacapital.com/CapitalServices/. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions 

as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. 

However, the Related Party Disclosure as per Schedule- V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) 2015, is annexed as Annexure III as part of the Annual Report. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has an investment of Rs. 27,183/- (in Thousands) and details in 

accordance with section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are given in the notes to financial statements. 

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has granted loan of Rs. 1,24,204/- (in Thousands). 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

The information of employees and managerial remuneration, as required under Section 197(2) read with 

Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, and 

other details are annexed herewith and forms part of this report as Annexure IV. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As per Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015, as applicable, 

Management Discussion Analysis, is an integral part of this report and annexed herewith and forms part 

of this report as Annexure V. 

  

  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

As per the provision of Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as amended, Compliance with Corporate Governance provisions as specified in the 

Regulations 17 to 27, clause (b) to (1) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not 
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apply to listed entities having paid-up equity share capital not exceeding Rs. 10 Crores and net worth not 

exceeding Rs. 25 Crores as on the last date of previous financial year. 

The Paid up Equity Share Capital and the Net Worth of the Company is Rs 3,07,42,250/- (Rupees Three 

Crore Seven Lakh Forty Two Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Only) and Rs 17,00,03,039 (Rupees 

Seventeen Crore Three Thousand Thirty Nine Only) respectively, which are less than Rs. 10,00,00,000/- 

and Rs. 25,00,00,000/ respectively as per the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the 

Financial year 2024-2025. 

Hence, the Company is exempt from complying the provisions of Regulations 17 to 27, clause (b) to (1) 

and (t) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V. Therefore, Company has not prepared the 

Corporate Governance Report. 

However, the Company has made serious effort to comply with the provisions of the Corporate 
Govemance in order to maintain a valuable relationship and trust with all the stakeholder. It has always 

been the Company’s Endeavour to follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices 

diligently. 

The management of Company believes that it will further enhance the level of Corporate Governance in 

the Company. 

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which is periodically reviewed 

by the management. The enterprise risk management policy of the Company, which has been duly 

approved by the Board, is reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board on a periodic basis. The risk 

management process encompasses practices relating to identification, assessment, monitoring and 

mitigation of various risks to key business objectives. Besides exploiting the business opportunities, the 

risk management process seeks to minimize adverse impacts of risk to key business objectives. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

The Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that every woman employee is 

treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero-tolerance towards sexual harassment and any act 

of sexual harassment invites serious disciplinary action. 

The Company has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employees. The policy allows 

every employee to freely report any such act and prompt action will be taken thereon. The policy lays 

down severe punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state that during the year under review, 

there were no cases of sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to the sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Further, the Company has duly constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in accordance with 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act, 2013 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 

COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

  

During the FY 2024-25, there are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 

tribunals that may have an impact for the company as a going concern and/or company’s operations. 

DEPOSITORY SYSTEMS 

Company’s shares are listed on BSE. As on March 31, 2025, 5,65,528 Equity Shares stand with the 

NSDL 19,29,167 Equity Shares stand with the CDSL and 5,79,530 Equity Shares stands in physical form. 
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The Company has entered into agreements with both National securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
Central Depository services (India) Limited (CDSL) whereby shareholders holding Shares in physical 

mode are requested to avail of the dematerialization facility with either of the depositories. 

Your Company has appointed M/s MAS Services Limited, a Category-I SEBI registered R&T Agent as 

its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

LISTING OF SHARES 

The Company’s shares are listed on the below mentioned Stock Exchanges:- 

BSE Limited (BSE) 

Corporate Relationship Department 

1st Floor, New Trading, Rotunda Building, 

PJ Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all levels. The 

enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of Employees have enabled the Company to remain at the leadership 

position in the industry. It has taken various steps to improve productivity across organization. 

The Board also takes this opportunity to express its deep gratitude for the continued co-operation and 

support received from its valued shareholders. 

CUO 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 

were no transactions on these items during the year under review:- 

a) Issue of the equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. Issue of shares 

(including sweat equity shares) to Directors or employees. 

b) Purchase of or subscription for shares in the Company by the employees of the Company. 

As there is no subsidiary or holding Company of the Company, so Managing Director/Whole Time 

Directors of the Company does not receive any remuneration or commission from any of such 

Companies. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’ 

Responsibility statement, the Directors confirm that: 

1) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and no material departures have been made there from. 
The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

2) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

3) The annual accounts were prepared on a going concer basis. 

4) The Directors have laid down effective internal financial controls to consistently monitor the affairs 
of the company and that such internal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively. 
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5) The Directors have devised a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and the same are adequate and operating effectively. 

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT /UNCLAIMED 

SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 

No DEMAT suspense account /unclaimed suspense account reported by RTA, NSDL and CDSL to the 

company. 
DISCLOSURE OF DETAILS OF ANY APPLICATION FILED FOR CORPORATE 

INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS, BY A FINANCIAL OR OPERATIONAL CREDITOR 

  

OR BY THE COMPANY ITSELF UNDER THE IBC BEFORE THE NCLT 

No such instance has taken place during the period under review. 

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 

THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 

LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS 

PBS) y 

  

During the Financial Year under review there were no transactions requiring disclosure or reporting in 

respect of matters relating to One-Time Settlement with any bank or financial institution. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR) 

Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended, mandate the inclusion of the BRR as part of the Annual Report for top 1,000 listed entities 
based on market capitalization. In compliance with the Regulation 32(f) of the Listing Regulations, the 

Business Responsibility Report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 is not applicable to 

the Company. 

  MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

As per the provisions of the Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is not required to 

maintain cost Records. Accordingly such accounts and records are not made and maintained. 

  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors would like to acknowledge and place on record their sincere appreciation of all 

stakeholders — shareholders, bankers, dealers, vendors and other business partners for the excellent 

support received from them during the year under review. Your Directors recognize and appreciate the 

efforts and hard work of all the employees of the Company and their continued contribution to its 

progress. 

By the Order of the Board of Directors 
For SPA Capital Services Limited 

    He fare 

Sandeep Parwal Honey Parwal 

(Chairman cum Managing Director) (Director) 

DIN: 00025803 DIN: 00025835 

Date: - 02/09/2025 

Place: - New Delhi 

  

29 
 



ANNEXURE | 

CS HKB & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

  

HITESH KUMAR BHARDWAJ 

FCS, L.L.B., B.Com. 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

SPA Capital Services Limited 

25 C-Block, Community Centre, 

Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110058 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by SPA CAPITAL SERVICES 

LIMITED (CIN: L65910DL1984PLC018749) listed on BSE vide ISIN SPACAPS | 542376 | 

INE726X01014 (hereinafter called “the Company”) for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon. 

1. Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 

the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 

has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2025 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

has proper Board-process (duly evolved) and compliance-mechanism in place to the 

extent and as applicable to the Company in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter: 

2. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2025 according to the provisions of: 
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(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

The Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the rules made thereunder; 

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 

thereunder; 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 

Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (During the year under 

review not applicable to the Company); 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’): 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015 as amended; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 

with client; 

The Company has not undertaken any of the activities during the audit period as 

envisaged in the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act') and hence are not relevant for the 

purpose of audit: 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits 

and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- 

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018. 
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The Company being registered with the RBI as NBFC - ND, following specific laws 

applicable to the Company during the period under review: 

(i) |The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and guidelines, directions and instructions 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India as prescribed there under; 

(ii) The SEBI (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996; 

(iii) AMFI Guidelines (The Company being a Mutual Fund Distributor, is registered 

under Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI) and holds a valid Certificate 

of Registration obtained from AMFI. 

(iv) Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 2013 and Pension 

Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Point of Presence) Regulations, 

2015. 

The Company has declared that all required filing with RBI has been completed 

and records has been provided for audit. 

The Company has complied following other laws as applicable to the Company during 

the period under review: 

(i) The Employees’ Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 as 

amended; 

(ii) The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 as amended. 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 

Company and on the examination of the relevant documents and records in 

pursuance thereof, on test -check basis the Company has complied with the specific 

laws to the extent applicable to the Company: 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards in respect of Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and 

General Meetings (SS-2) as amended from time to time issued by The Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India; 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered by the Company with the BSE Limited 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the 

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above. 
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We further report that— 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance 

of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The 

changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act; 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda (except agenda items having Unpublished Price 

Sensitive Information (UPSI)) were sent at least seven days in advance, and a 

system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on 

the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 

meeting; For the agenda notes which were sent at a notice of less than seven 

days, the requisite consent of the Board/Committee was taken. 

Majority decision is carried through and there was no instance of any director 

expressing any dissenting views. 

As per the records, the Company has generally filed forms, returns, documents 

and resolutions were required to be filed with ROC and other authorities and all 

the formalities relating to the same was in compliance with the act. 

    

10. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with its size and operations to monitor and ensure compliance with 

applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. 

11. We further report that during the audit period none of the following events has taken 

place - 

(i) Public/Rights/Preferential Issue of Shares/Debentures etc. 

(ii) Buy-back of securities. 

(iii) Major decision taken by the Members in pursuance to section 180 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

(iv) Amalgamation/Reconstruction, etc. 

(V) Foreign Technical Collaborations. 

for HKB & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Firm Unique Code: $2018DE630000 

Firm Peer Review No. 2730/2022 

HITESH 

KUMAR _ 

BHARDWAJ : 

(Hitesh Kumar Bhardwaj) 

Proprietor 

Date : 28-08-2025 FCS: 13061; COP: 21001 

Place: New Delhi UDIN: F013061G001103788 
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HITESH KUMAR BHARDWAJ 

FCS, L.L.B., B.Com. 

To, 

The Members, 

SPA Capital Services Limited 

25 C-Block, Community Centre, 

Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110058 

Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the 

applicable laws and maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the auditing standards CSAS-1 to CSAS-4 (“CSAS”) prescribed by the ICSI. 

These standards require that the auditor complies with statutory and regulatory 

requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

Due to inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, 

there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliance may not 

be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with 

the CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

In expressing our opinion, it must be noted that — 

(i) Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on our audit. 

(ii) We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

The verification of available documents was done on test basis to ensure that correct 

facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, 

we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

(iii) We have not verified correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books 

of accounts of the Company. 

(iv) Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
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(v) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

(vi) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

for HKB & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Firm Unique Code: S2018DE630000 

Firm Peer Review No. 2730/2022 

OWA 

HITESH 

KUMAR 

BHARDWA    
Date: 2025.08.28 2200555, 

(Hitesh Kumar Bhardwaj) 

Proprietor 

Date : 28-08-2025 FCS: 13061; COP: 21001 

Place: New Delhi UDIN: F013061G001103788 
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Annexure-II 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

FOR THE MEMBERS OF BOARD AND EXECUTIVE MAMANGEMENT 

The Board has delegated to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in consultation with the 

Chairman of the Board, the responsibility for identifying and recommending to the Board, candidates for 

the Board, after considering the necessary and desirable competencies for new. 

Policy for Appointment and Re-Appointment of Director 

  

The Board believes that its membership should comprise Directors with an appropriate mix of skills, 

experience and personal attributes that will best complement board effectiveness, cohesion and diversity 

and allow the Directors to individually, and as a Board collectively, to: 

(a) Discharge their responsibilities and duties under the law effectively and efficiently; 

(b) Assess the performance of management in meeting those objectives and goals. 

Accordingly, in selecting potential new directors, the Nomination and Remuneration committee will seek 

to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. In doing so, the 

Committee will have regard to the results of the annual appraisal of the Board’s performance. 

While recognizing that each director will not necessarily fulfill all criteria, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee have identified the following fundamental factors as relevant to the selection 

and appointment of new directors: 

(a) Outstanding in capability with extensive and senior commercial experience; 

(b) High level of personal integrity; and 

(c) Time available to meet the commitment required. 

  

Remuneration payable to Managing Director/ Whole Time Director 

The Managing Director/ Whole-Time Director are receiving remuneration from the Company as per the 

approval by the members of the Company in the General Meeting (GM) in accordance to the provision of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. 

The annual increments and performance incentive of the Managing Director/Whole Time Directors are 

linked to their performance and are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time 

to time 
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Remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors 

  

The Non-Executive Directors will be paid with the sitting fee, if any, subject to the approval of Board of 

Directors/including any sub-committee thereof, upto the limit as specified under Companies Act, 2013 

and also in Compliance with the Listing Agreement. 

In addition to an annual self-evaluation by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board must 

review the effectiveness of the Committee annually. 

eVITIIICSITRS 

This policy can be modified or repealed at any time by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
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Annexure-III 

Related Party Disclosures: 

(a) Holding Company / Associate Company 

Booming Investment Advisor Private Limited (Formerly known as SPA Investment Adviser Private 

Limited) ceased to be the Associate of the Company during the current Financial Year 

(b) Directors and Key Management Personnel/Relative 

1. Mr. Sandeep Parwal Chairman Cum Managing Director 

2. | Mr. Mahaveer Prasad Mundhra Independent Director 

3. Mr. Kanav Parwal Related to Director 

4. Ms. Kanika Parwal Related to Director 

5. Ms. Nitya Kabra Related to Director 

6. Ms. Sugeeta Upadhyay Independent Director 
7. | Mrs. Honey Parwal Woman Director (Non-Executive Director) 

8. Mr. Manish Kumar Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

(c) Companies in which Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (excluding CS and CFO) 

  

or their relative have control or significant influence; 

Defiant Enterprises Private Limited 

Dhrubtara Trading Private Limited 

R.P. Computer Forms Private Limited 

Vijay Shree Builders Private Limited 

Bluemoon Financial Services Private Limited 

Penguin Developers Private Limited 

Wintech Marketing Private Limited 

Simplex Construction Private Limited 

9. Niveshak MPowered Private Limited 
10. Bhoopati Trading Private Limited 

11. Jagriti Buildtech Private Limited 

12. Parth Infracon Private Limited 

13. SPA Capital Advisors Limited 

14. SPA Valuation Advisors Private Limited 

15. Haryana Sultans Promotions Private Limited 

16. Sansaar Warehousing & Logistic Parks Private Limited 
17. SPA Insurance Broking Services Limited 

18. New Age Knowledge Solutions Limited 
19. Zenlads Enterprises LLP 

20. Booming Investment Advisor Private Limited (Formerly known as SPA Investment Adviser 

Private Limited) 

S
N
D
Y
M
A
Y
W
N
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(d) Transactions with Related Parties 

(in Rs. Thousands) 
  

Balance Outstanding as 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

Name of Related | Nature of During the year on 

Party Transaction 2024-2025 | 2023-2024 _| 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24 

Directors — 3,600 3,600 228 . 
Remuneration 

Sandeep Parwal | Loan Paid & (MD) Refund 1,700 (1,054) - - 

Reimbursement of - 20 - 
Expenses 

Remuneration - 1,000 - - 

Mr. Kanav Loan Paid (1,200) 100 16 1,276 
Parwal 

Interest Income - 141 182 182 

Manish Kumar | ¢ tary Paid 1,103 831 B 92 
(CS) 

Salary Paid 1,774 600 128 - 

. Professional Fees 
Nitya Kabra Paid 265 - - - 

Advance against _ 114 _ 114 
salary 

Bhoopati Trading ; 
Private Limited Loan Repaid 17,756 (4) - 17,756 

R P Computer 

Forms Private Loan Taken & 5,970 600 - 5,970 
Returned Back 

Limited 

Simplex Loan Paid & ; (400) ; ; 

; Refund 

Construction Security Deposit 
Private Limited for Office - 35 - - 

Loan Paid & 
SPA Insurance Refund 12,209 (7,318) . . 

Broking Services 
Ltd Loan Received 7,500 - 7,500 - 

Interest Paid 2 - 2 - 

Brokerage Paid - 3,846 - 4,350 

SPA Investment Loan Taken 5,500 750 - 13,623 

Adviser Private Loan Returned 
Limited Back (19,173) - - - 

Advance 

Brokerage Paid 50 ; >0 ; 

Rent Paid* 777 777 296 296 

Vijay Shree Loan Taken and 
Builders Private returned back 1,343 - - - 

Limited Security Deposit _ _ _ 3.257 
for Office ’ 

Wintech Brokerage Paid* 7,882 8,827 400 - 

Marketing Load Paid and 
Private Limited | refund ** - (5,000) - -     
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Security Deposit 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                  

for Office ; 2,000 : : 
Loan Taken & 
Returned Back 24,349 3,715 27,939 3,715 

Loan Paid and 436 
SPA Capital refund - - - 

Advisors Limited | Reimbursement of 125 
Expenses ; ; ; 

Interest Paid 284 - 255 - 

Security Deposit 
for Office ; ; 45 45 

Penguin Reimbursement of | _ 16 ; ; 

Developers Pvt Expenses 
Ltd Rent Paid* 300 180 - 

Advance Paid 383 - 383 - 

Brokerage Paid* 40,766 35,495 - 2,220 

Niveshak M Reimbursement of 
Powered Private re vneee.. ene OF | 65 59 - - 

Limited P 
Loan Paid 8,780 - 8,780 - 

Loan Repaid**** | - (52,200) - - 

Advance given and 

received back ; 9,091 ; ” 

Parth Infracon Loan Given*** - 35,000 - - 

Pvt. Ltd. Reimbursement of 

Loan sanction - (391) - - 

charges 

Brokerage Paid 16,594 - - - 

Rn vad & _ (250) _ ; 

SPA Valuation Ra ~ F 
Advisors Pvt. eimbursement o _ 19 _ _ 

Ltd. Expenses 

Fees Received * 3,269 - 2,832 - 

Haryana Sultan 
Promotions Loan Paid - 21,920 21,920 21,920 

Private Limited 

Zenlads 
Enterprises LLP Loan Paid - 9,501 9,501 9,501 

* Inclusive of GST 

** Brokerage amount adjusted with Loan 

*** Toan received from Yes bank of 3.54 Crore againt Property owned by Parth Infracon Pvt Ltd 

*** 7 oan and advances of 5.22 Crore converted into OCD 
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Annexure IV 

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO THE REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 

EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND 

RULE 5 (1) COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees 

of the Company for the financial year and the percentage increase in remuneration of each 

Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, 

if any, in the financial year. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

S. | Names of Designation Ratio of % increase in 

No | Directors/KMP remuneration of remuneration of 

each director to each 

median Directors/KMP 

remuneration of 

employees 

1. Mr. Sandeep Parwal Chairman Cum | 14.78% NIL 

Managing Director 

(Promoter) 

2. Mrs. Honey Parwal Non Executive Director | - NA 

& Promoter 

3. Ms. Sugeeta Upadhyay __| Independent Director - NA 

4. Mr. Mahaveer Prasad | Independent Director - NA 

Mundhra 

5. Mr. Manish Kumar Company Secretary & NIL 

Compliance Officer               

2. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: Nil 

3. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025 : 

4. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 

in and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 

increase in the managerial remuneration: 

The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in Financial Year 

2024-25 was Nil. 

Percentage increase in the KMP, other than Directors, managerial remuneration for the year was Nil. 
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Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: 

The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual 

employees and the Company. Through its compensation package, the Company endeavors to attract, 

retain, develop and motivate a high-performance staff. Individual performance pay is determined by 

business performance and the performance of the individuals measured through the annual appraisal 

process. The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 

RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

A. Details of Top Ten Employees in terms of remuneration drawn as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

                    

S. | Employee Designatio | Remunera | Qualification Date of Previous % equity | Whether any 

N | Name n tion & Experience Joining employment shares such employee 

0 (in years) held by is a relative of 

employee | any director or 

manager of the 

company and 

if so, name of 

such director 

or manager 

1. | Hitungshu CEO 83,00,400 | PGDIM, CFA, 10-03-2025 Sundaram - - 

Motilal Debnath Diploma , 24 years Alternates - Chief 

Business Officer, 

Mumbai 

2. | Sandeep Managing B.com, CA, - Husband of 
Parwal Director 36,00,000 | NISM V-A, 1-1-1996 16.94% Mrs. Honey 

37 Years Parwal 

3. | Satish Kumar Vice 32,30,244 F&F Global Pvt. - - 

Brudyaan President MCA, 1-6-2010 Ltd. 

28 Years 

4. | Mahinder Pal Sr. Vice 28,38,468 | MSC, BA, 24 years | 16-12-2024 Motilal Oswal - - 

Seth President Financial 
Services, Regional 

Head, New Delhi 

5. | Amit 22,72,596 | Diploma in office - - 

Sharma Sr. Vice management & 9-9-2019 LIC Mutual Funds 
President NISM V-A 

24 Years 

6. | Nikhil Sharma Vice 18,37,440 | BBA, MBA, 19 16-12-2024 Lenbox, AVP, - - 

President years New Delhi 
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7. | NITYA KABRA | Asst. Vice | 17,74,044 01-09-2023 

President 

8. | BHAVIK Asst. Vice | 14,19,228 | Bcom 18-11-2024 Self Employed 

RAMESH President 
SHAH 

9. | Aashutosh Ayay | Sr. Manager | 13,54,560 | Bcom, 16 years 06-05-2024 Stock Shine 

Kumar Singh Investment Pvt. 

Ltd. 

10 | Ravneet Kaur Asst. Vice | 1214,304 PGDBM-HR, Unified Credit 

President 16 Years 1-8-2018 Solutions Pvt Ltd 
  

All the above employees are on the permanent roll of the Company. 

B. 

C. 

Details of Employees employed throughout the Financial year who were in receipt of the remuneration for that year which, in 

aggregate, was not less than Rs. 1.02 crore: NIL 

Employees employed for a part of the Financial year and who were in receipt of the remuneration for that Financial year at a rate 

not less than Rs. 8,50,000 per month: NIL 
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ANNEXURE V 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Global Economy 

In 2024, the global economy expanded at a moderate pace of 3.3%, reflecting a period of relative 

stability despite ongoing geopolitical and economic disruptions. Ongoing geopolitical tensions, 

including the continued Russia-Ukraine war, the prolonged Israel-Gaza conflict, and several 

other regional flashpoints, weighed heavily on global sentiment in 2024. In early 2025, the 

United States announced sweeping tariffs, prompting retaliatory actions from major trading 

partners and adding a fresh layer of uncertainty to the global trade environment. Trade disputes 

influenced global stability and investment decisions as economies continued to navigate these 

challenges through strategic adjustments and policy responses. Inflationary pressures showed 

some signs of easing in 2024 due to improving supply chain efficiencies and moderating energy 

prices. However, global headline inflation is now expected to decline more slowly than 

previously anticipated, from 5.6% in 2024, now projected to ease to 4.3% in 2025 and 3.6% in 

2026. This reflects upward revisions for advanced economies, partially offset by marginal 

declines in emerging and developing markets. Central banks across key regions are pivoting 

towards accommodative policies, helping improve credit availability and supporting investment 

sentiment over the medium term. 

Looking ahead, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) forecasts global growth to moderate to 

2.8% in 2025, before recovering slightly to 3.0% in 2026. Advanced economies are expected to 

grow at 1.4% in 2025 and 1.5% in 2026, supported by gradual monetary easing and fiscal 

adjustments, though trade realignments and supply chain shifts may temper the pace of 

recovery. Meanwhile, emerging markets and developing economies are projected to expand by 

3.7% in 2025 and 3.9% in 2026, driven by resilient domestic demand, infrastructure 

investments, and accelerating digital transformation. 

Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2025 

GDP Growth Projections (in %) 

Emerging Markets and 

Global Economy Advanced Economies Developing Economies 

4.5 5./ 59 

2025 : 18 2025 1 2025 ~\1s 

  

2024 33 2024 \2.8 2024 *) 3.0 

Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2025 

While the global economy continues to face heightened uncertainty, driven by trade disruptions, 

inflationary pressures, and financial vulnerabilities, particularly in emerging markets, signs of 

stabilisation are emerging. 

Easing inflation in major economies, improving financial conditions, and anticipated monetary 

policy adjustments are expected to support a gradual recovery in global demand. At the same 

time, multilateral efforts around debt resolution, energy security, and supply chain 

diversification are likely to shape a more resilient and inclusive global growth path over the 

medium term. 

Source: IMF report on World Economic Outlook, April 2025 

Indian Economy 

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has revised its forecast for India’s economic growth to 

6.4 percent for both 2025 and 2026. Earlier in its April 2025 World Economic Outlook, IMF had 

projected India’s GDP growth at 6.2 percent for 2025 and 6.3 percent for 2026. 
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Reaffirming India’s position as the world’s fastest-growing major economy, IMF attributed the 

upward revision to a more benign external environment than anticipated in its April forecast. 

For India, projections are based on the calendar year, with the agency noting that India’s growth 

projections are 6.7 percent for 2025 and 6.4 percent for 2026 based on financial year data. 

The IMF has also modestly raised its global growth outlook to 3.0 percent in 2025 and 3.1 

percent in 2026, citing lower-than-expected impact from tariffs, a weaker US dollar, and 

improved financial conditions. China is forecast to grow at 4.8 percent in 2025 and 4.2 percent 

in 2026, while the US is expected to expand 1.9 percent in 2025 and 2.0 percent in 2026.1 

India’s growth story continues to draw global attention, backed by strong fundamentals and 

consistent performance. Real GDP, which measures the economy’s output after removing the 

effects of inflation, expanded by 6.5 per cent in 2024-25. The Reserve Bank of India expects this 

pace to continue into 2025-26. Other projections echo this optimism, with the United Nations 

forecasting growth of 6.3 per cent this year and 6.4 per cent next year, while the Confederation 

of Indian Industry places its estimate slightly higher at 6.40 to 6.70 per cent.? 

India’s economic outlook for 2025 remains resilient and growth-oriented, underpinned by its 

strong position as the world’s third-largest startup ecosystem and an increasingly attractive 

investment destination. With over 1.8 lakh recognized startups and nearly 120 unicorns valued 

at over US$354 billion, India continues to demonstrate its innovation capacity, entrepreneurial 

depth, and ability to create large-scale employment. The government's proactive policy push 

such as Startup India, the National Data Governance Policy, and initiatives like the Agriculture 

Accelerator Fund—has further strengthened the ecosystem, enabling startups across 

technology, financial services, agritech, and consumer sectors to thrive.3 

PE/VC investments in July 2025 totaled US$4 billion, 32% higher than the US$3 billion recorded 

in July 2024. The number of deals in July 2025 increased by 13 % year-on-year, with 115 deals 

compared to 102 in July 2024, and 14% higher than June 2025 (101 deals). 

July 2025 saw 10 large deals totaling US$2.8 billion, reflecting a 82% increase in value compared 

to July 2024 (US$1.5 billion). Large deals accounted for 69% of overall PE/VC investments in 

July 2025. The largest deal of the month was CVC Capital acquiring 49% stake in Aavas 

Financiers for US$949 million. 

Growth investments accounted for the largest share of PE/VC activity in July 2025, with US$2.0 

billion deployed - a 290% increase in value over July 2024 (US$518 million). Credit investments 

ranked second, with US$792 million invested in July 2025, up 66% from US$477 million in July 

2024. Private investment in public equity (PIPE) investments was the smallest segment at 

US$284 million, but 167% higher than the value recorded in July 2024 (US$106 million). 

From a sector perspective, financial services led in July 2025 with US$1.8 billion, followed by 

real estate with US$481 million and technology with US$472 million.* 

Government of India - Economic Survey 2024-25 

DOMESTIC ECONOMY REMAINS STEADY AMIDST GLOBAL UNCERTAINTIES 

As per the first advance estimates released by the National Statistical Office, Ministry of 

Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoSP]), the real gross domestic product (GDP) growth 

for FY25 is estimated to be 6.4 per cent. From the angle of aggregate demand in the economy, 

private final consumption expenditure at constant prices is estimated to grow by 7.3 per cent, 

driven by a rebound in rural demand. PFCE as a share of GDP (at current prices) is estimated to 

increase from 60.3 per cent in FY24 to 61.8 per cent in FY25. This share is the highest since 

  

‘https://www.newsonair.gov.in/imf 

*https://www.pib.gov.in/PressNote   
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FY03. Gross fixed capital formation (GFCF) (at constant prices) is estimated to grow by 6.4 per 

cent. 

Chart I.20: Despite global uncertainty, India's growth remains close to 
decadal average (at constant prices) 

  

  

10 

BFYo, Average srowth over FYis and FYo4 (excluding FYo1 and FYo2) 

5 

= 6 

| 

= 
a 
a 4 

o il l 

Industry Services GDP 
a GVA GVA 

Source: Calculations based on Statement 13: Annual and Quarterly Estimates of GDP at constant prices, MoSPI 

Note: FY25 values are First Advance Estimates.     
On the supply side, real gross value added (GVA) is also estimated to grow by 6.4 per cent. The 

agriculture sector is expected to rebound to a growth of 3.8 per cent in FY25. The industrial 

sector is estimated to grow by 6.2 per cent in FY25. Strong growth rates in construction 

activities and electricity, gas, water supply and other utility services are expected to support 

industrial expansion. Growth in the services sector is expected to remain robust at 7.2 per cent, 

driven by healthy activity in financial, real estate, professional services, public administration, 

defence, and other services. The analysis of growth trends in this chapter, hereinafter, is mostly 

based on the trends in the first half (H1) of FY25, on which the information base is more 

comprehensive.® 

NSO Press Release: Strong Start to FY26 with 7.8% GDP Growth 

The National Statistical Office (NSO) released its press note on Q1 of FY 2025-26 (April-June 

2025) on 29 August 2025, reporting that India’s real GDP grew by 7.8% year-on-year, while 

nominal GDP rose by 8.8% during the quarter. The data highlights strong momentum in the 

economy, led primarily by services and manufacturing sectors, which continued to expand 

robustly. This performance indicates that India has entered FY26 on a solid footing, with growth 

well above most international forecasts. The figures underscore the resilience of domestic 

demand despite global uncertainties, while also reinforcing India’s position as the fastest- 

growing major economy. 

Key Highlights: 

e Real GDP has been estimated to grow by 7.8% in Q1 of FY 2025-26 over the growth rate 

of 6.5% during Q1 of FY 2024-25. 

e Nominal GDP has witnessed a growth rate of 8.8% in Q1 of FY 2025-26. 

e Agriculture and Allied Sector has observed the Real GVA growth rate of 3.7%, as 

compared to the growth rate of 1.5% registered in Q1 of last financial year. 

e Secondary Sectors, prominently Manufacturing (7.7%) and Construction (7.6%) Sector 

has registered above 7.5% growth rate at Constant Prices in this quarter. 

e Mining & Quarrying (-3.1%) and Electricity, Gas, Water Supply and Other Utility Services 

Sector (0.5%) has seen moderated Real growth rate during Q1 of FY 2025-26. 

  

*https://www.indiabudget.gov.in/economicsurvey 
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e Tertiary Sector (9.3%) has recorded substantial growth rate at Constant Prices in Q1 of 

FY 2025-26, over the growth rate of 6.8% in Q1 of FY 2024-25. 

e Government Final Consumption Expenditure (GFCE) has bounced back, registering 9.7% 

growth rate in Nominal terms during Q1 of FY 2025-26, over the growth rate of 4.0% in 

Q1 of FY 2024-25. 

e Real Private Final Consumption Expenditure (PFCE) has reported 7.0% growth rate 

during Q1 of FY 2025-26 as compared to the 8.3% growth rate in the corresponding 

period of previous financial year. 

e Gross Fixed Capital Formation (GFCF) has recorded 7.8% growth rate at Constant Prices, 

over the growth rate of 6.7% in Q1 of FY 2024-25. 

Real GVA in Q1 of FY 2025-26 is estimated at [7144.64 lakh crore, against [141.47 lakh crore in Q1 

of FY 2024-25, registering a growth rate of 7.6%. Nominal GVA in Q1 of FY 2025-26 is estimated 

at 2178.25 lakh crore, against 2171.95 lakh crore in Q1 of FY 2024-25, showing a growth rate of 

8.8%.° 

Fig. 1: Quarterly GDP and GVA Estimates along with V-o-Y Growth Rates from O1 FY 

2022-23 to ‘01 FY 2025-26 at Constant Prices 
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Mutual fund AUM scales 

The mutual fund (MF) industry ended fiscal 2025 with assets under management (AUM) ata 

record Rs 65.74 lakh crore in March 2025 vs Rs 53.40 lakh crore in March 2024, marking an on- 

year rise of 23.11%. The expansion in the AUM was primarily driven by robust net inflows 

during the fiscal year, reflecting sustained investor interest. Additionally, mark-to-market (MTM) 

gains provided a supplementary boost, underpinned by positive performance in both equity and 

debt markets. 

The asset base expanded partly owing to mark-to-market (MTM) gains, spurred by equity 

markets clocking positive returns, as reflected in the Nifty 50 TRI and Sensex TRI rising 6.0% 

and 5.9%, respectively. Debt markets also contributed positively through MTM gains, supported 

by favorable yield movements. 

The increase in AUM was also attributed to net inflows summing up to Rs 8.15 lakh crore during 

fiscal 2025, with number of folios rising to an all-time high at end-March 2025. Investor 

participation grew, owing to the industry's efforts to widen awareness of MFs, investor 

education programmes and the popularity of systematic investment plans (SIPs). In fact, despite 

  

“https://www.mospi.gov.in/sites/default/files/press_release 
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bouts of volatility, investors stayed invested, demonstrating a long-term commitment to their 

financial goals.’ 

Assets rise due to net inflows and MTM gains (Rs lakh crore) 
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Growth and Key Milestones of the Indian Mutual Fund Industry as of July 2025 

By 2014, mutual fund industry AUM had surged from ~INR 47,000 crore to ~INR 10 lakh crore. 

20 In contrast, SIP AUM accounted for a small fraction, i.e. INR 1,000 crore in monthly inflows,21 

owing to the limited adoption by the more prominent retail investor class stemming from low 

financial awareness, product understanding and investor psyche. The years 2015-2024 have 

been a defining period for the Indian mutual fund industry, characterised by significant 

democratisation of investment avenues, unparalleled growth, and a significant broadening of 

investor participation. As the industry evolves, it plays an essential role in supporting the vision 

of Viksit Bharat 2047 - a developed India characterised by inclusive and sustainable growth. 

After 2014, India’s mutual fund AUM grew exponentially, more than doubling of the global 

mutual fund AUM market share from 0.3% to 0.8% by 2023, 22 expanding from INR 10.8 lakh 

crore in 201523 to over INR 68 lakh crore by November 2024 (INR 53.40 lakh crore by March 

2024) 24- a nearly sixfold increase. This exponential growth was fuelled primarily by retail 

participation, buoyant equity markets and structural shifts in the country’s mutual fund and 

capital market ecosystems, largely mainly by structural changes in the domestic mutual fund 

and capital markets ecosystem. Product innovation, regulatory reforms, technological 

advancements and a strong focus on investor education, key drivers of this transformation, have 

all been instrumental in overcoming the industry’s existing challenges and positioning it on an 

unprecedented growth trajectory.® 

Gaining momentum and democratisation (2015-2024) 

Figure 2: India's rise as a global fund p rh b 2015-2024 - growth rate (%) 
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“https://www.amfiindia.com/Themes/ 

Shttps://www.amfiindia.com/Themes/Theme1/downloads/VisionPaper 2025.pdf 
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India Mutual Fund Market Analysis by Mordor Intelligence 

The India mutual fund market is valued at USD 0.85 trillion in 2025 and is projected to touch 

USD 1.17 trillion by 2030, reflecting a 6.62% CAGR. This healthy momentum stems from a 

confluence of regulatory modernization, digital distribution, and an enduring retail investment 

culture that took firmer root after the pandemic. New frameworks such as Specialized 

Investment Funds (SIFs) and Mutual Fund Lite have expanded the investable universe, bridging 

classic pooled vehicles with portfolio-management-style products while lowering operating 

hurdles for passive fund specialists. Equity funds continue to anchor the India mutual fund 

market as investors increasingly shift household savings away from fixed-income deposits 

toward long-horizon wealth creation. Rapid penetration of UPI-enabled micro-SIPs, coupled 

with growing comfort among first-time investors who use mobile apps for onboarding, 

reinforces steady inflows even in volatile markets. Although stricter expense-ratio ceilings and 

cybersecurity compliance add cost pressure, most asset managers consider technology 

investments and scale-driven efficiencies adequate countermeasures. 

Monthly SIP inflows climbed to INR 26,632 crore in April 2025—an all-time high despite equity- 

market swings. SIP-linked AUM has reached 20.31% of industry assets, while active SIP accounts 

now exceed 8.11 crore, underscoring disciplined investor behavior during corrections. Ticket 

sizes are also trending higher, lifting average monthly contributions to INR 24,113 crore in FY 

2024-25 and paving the way for INR 40,000 crore by 2027. Predictable cash receipts let fund 

houses extend investment horizons and curb redemption risk, which in turn supports portfolio 

resilience across market cycles. These structural improvements elevate the long-run growth 

ceiling for the India mutual fund market. 

Key Report Takeaways 

e By fund type, equity captured 58.97% of the India mutual fund market share in 2024 and is 

projected to advance at an 8.03% CAGR through 2030. 

e By investor type, retail investors held 60.65% share of the India mutual fund market in 

2024, while their assets are expected to expand ata 7.24% CAGR to 2030. 

e By management style, active funds accounted for 74.19% share of the India mutual fund 

market in 2024; passive strategies are projected to grow at an 8.56% CAGR. 

e By distribution channel, online trading platforms secured a 33.16% share of the India 

mutual fund market in 2024 and are anticipated to lead growth at 9.15% CAGR.° 

  

"httos://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-mutual-fund-industry?utm source 
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CS HIKB & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

  

HITESH KUMAR BHARDWAJ 

FCS, L.L.B., B.Com. 

To 

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 

Corporate Relation Department 

1st Floor, New Trading Ring, 

Rotunda Building, P J Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 

Subject: Non-applicability Certificate for Corporate Governance pursuant to 

Regulation 27(2) as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

Ref: SPA Capital Services Limited (BSE Scrip Code: 542376) 

Dear Sir/ Madam(s), 

I hereby appraise that pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of the Securities Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

from time to time (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015”), the 

compliance with the corporate governance provisions as specified in regulations 17, 17A, 

18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub regulation (2) 

of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply, when Listed Company is 

attaining any of below stated criteria: 

1. Listed entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore and; 

2. Net worth not exceeding rupees twenty-five crore, as on the last day of the previous 

financial year; 

Further pursuant to Regulation 27(2) of the said SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Listed 

Entity is required to submit a quarterly compliance report on corporate governance in the 

format specified by the SEBI from time to time to recognized Stock Exchange(s). 

  

© 1/10072 D/B, St. No. 3J, DDA Colony, West Gorakh Park, Shahdara, Delhi - 110032; 
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I hereby submit that the paid-up capital and net worth of the Company as on the last day of 

the previous three financial years as follows: 

  

  

  

      

Particulars As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023 

Paid-up capital Rs. 3,07,42,250/- Rs. 3,07,42,250/- Rs. 3,07,42,250/- 

Net Worth Rs. 17,00,03,039/- Rs. 16,50,58,006/- Rs. 16,12,56,652/-     
  

Considering the relaxation provided to listed companies whose paid-up capital does not 

exceed ten crore and net worth does not exceed rupees twenty-five crore, as on the last day 

of the previous financial year, the provision related to the filing of Corporate Governance 

Report under Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) 2015 is not applicable to SPA Capital Services 

Limited. 

Further the said Company undertakes that whenever the abovesaid regulation(s) of the 

said SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 becomes applicable to the company ata later date, the 

Company will comply with the same within 6 (six) months from the date on which the 

provisions become applicable to the Company. 

The above is for your information and records. 

Date: 09-07-2025 

Place: Delhi 

HKB & Associates 

Companies Secretaries 

Firm Unique Code: S2018DE630000 

Firm Peer Review No. 2730/2022 

HITESH 
KUMAR 
BHARDWAJ: 

      
te: 2025.07.09 16:20:59 +05'30 

(Hitesh Kumar Bhardwaj) 
Proprietor 

FCS: 13061; COP: 21001 

UDIN: F013061G000743648 
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. DHANA & ASSOCIATES 
SCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS    

TO THE MEMBERS OF SPA CAPITAL SERVICES L AITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of SPA CAPITAL 

SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 

2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 

ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ 

section of our report, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit 

including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

1. The company has taken various loans, which were outstanding as on 3ist March, 
2025. The management has not provided the interest on some of the loans, which 
constitute a departure from the Accrual basis of accounting. The company’s records 
indicate that an Rs. 7,753/-(in Thousands) for the year ended on March 31, 2025 has 
not been provided as interest expenses on these loans, which would have been 

decrease the profit Rs. 7,753/-(in Thousands) for the year ended on March 31, 2025 
and also increase the loan liability by same amount. 

2. The company has given loans to various parties, which were outstanding as on 3ist 

March, 2025 of Rs 31,420 (in Rs Thousands), however the company has not charged 
any interest on such loans given by the company, so in absence of the same the loans 
are loss assets as per the NBFC guidelines issued by RBI, however the company 
has not made any Provision for loss assets, which constitute a departure from the 

NBFC guidelines and in view of the same the company’s records indicate that profit of 
the company is overstated by 31,420(in Rs Thousands) on account of non-provision of 

loss assets and also the provision for loss assets is understated by Rs 31,420 (in Rs 
Thousands) and the loan assets are overstated by 31,420 (in Rs Thousands) for the 
year ended on March 31, 2025 

Key Audit Matter(s) 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the standalone financial. statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. 

407, South Ex Plaza-ll, South Extension, Part-2, New Delhi-110049, India 

+91 11 4607 6490 | info@dhanaassociates.com | www.dhanaassociates.com | Agra | Dimapur | Guwahati 

Peer Review Certificate No. 015317. Dated: 12-May-2023 

53



Information other than Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s 

annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information 

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained 

in the audit or otherwise appears tc be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financiai Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial and the 

Cash Flow Statement of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 

reporting process. | 

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and_are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements, 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely ‘rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
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Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 

and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including 

other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the 

standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS 

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies 

which use accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such 

an accounting software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial 

year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly, it is reported under Rule 11(g) of 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) that the company has not 

used the accounting software with the feature of recording the audit trial for 

maintaining its books of accounts. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its financial statements which would impact its financial position 

ii. The Company has no long-term contracts as at 31° March, 2025 and therefore 

there are no material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 

31* March, 2025. 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to 

or in any. other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; | 7 

  56 eo”



V. 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonabie and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement. 

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 

March 2025, 

For DHANA Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

  

” ee, 

Arun Khandelia Js sorn. 
Partner ey, A NA 
Membership No. 089125 (° \e 

Place: New Delhi \ KNEW DEL ot 
Date: 29.05.2025 RNAS 
UDIN: 25089125BMJIMSX8907~ es {cco 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the standalone 

financial statements of SPA CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED for the year 

ended 31 March 2025 : 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

(i)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

inciuding quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company have Intangible assets as at the end of the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, all Property, Plant and 

Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the 

period but there is a regular programme of verification, which in our opinion, is 

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 

assets. As informed to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, as the company 

owns no immovable properties, therefore reporting under clause 3(i)(c) is not 

applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 

revalued its Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or 

Intangible assets or both during the year; 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings 

initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under 

the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 

thereunder.; 

Inventories: 

(ii) (a) The Company holds securities in physical form as weil as in 

dematerialized form. The securities held in physical form have been physically 

verified by the management during the year. Securities in the form of 

dematerialized held as stock in trade by the custodian is verified with the 

confirmation statement received from them on a regular basis. In our opinion, 

the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as 

followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on 

verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or 

more in the aggregate for each class of inventory. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 

5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or 
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Loans, Advances, Guarantees and Securities: 

(iii) The Company has made investments in and given Loans to companies, 

firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and has granted unsecured loans to other 

parties, during the year, in respect of which:- 

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the 

information and explanations given to us , the Company has granted 

loans to a party other than subsidiaries as below: 

(in Rs Thousands) 
  

    

‘Opening Balance as on| Aggregate amount | Balance outstanding as 
01.04.2024 paid/received during the | at balance sheet date 

year 
1,49,741 32,606/(55,395) 1,24,204     
  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 

audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and 

conditions of the loans for which agreements were provided are, prima facie, not 

prejudicial to the interest of the Company. However, in respect of loans for 

which agreements were not provided, we are unable to comment on whether the 

repayment terms were specified or whether repayments are being made as per 

the agreed terms. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the 

repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated so we 

are unable to comment on the same; 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no amounts 

overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans where loan agreements are 

available. For the balance, in the absence of necessary documentation, we are 

unable to comment on whether any amount is overdue 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in 

the nature of loan granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed 

or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given 

to same parties 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, as the conditions for the 

repayment of principal and payment of interest in case of loans given has not 

been stipulated so we are unable to comment on the same. 

Compliance in relation to loan to Related Parties: 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has 

not complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 in respect of few loans granted, investments made and guarantees and 

securities provided, as interest on loans and advances given has not been 

charged by the company. 
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Acceptance of Deposits: 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed 

to be deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

Cost Accounting Records: 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central 

Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by it. 

Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.; 

Statutory Dues: 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 

basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ 

accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 

Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 

Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have 

generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, statutory dues 

relating to Income-tax, which have not been deposited by the Company on 

account of disputes are as under:- 

(in Rs Thousands) 
    

  

  
  

Name of | Nature of | Amount Period to | Forum where 

Statue — Dues Involved which Amount | dispute is 

Relates (A.Y) | pending 

Income Tax | Income tax 20.28 2019-20 CIT Appeals 

Act , 1961 
Income Tax | Income tax 648 2018-19 CIT Appeals 
Act , 1961           
  

Disclosure of Transactions not recorded in Books: 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 

surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 

the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as 

income during the year.; 

Loans Taken: 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 

basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company have not 

defaulted in the repayments of such loans or borrowings obtained from financial 

institutions. The company has defaulted on the repayment of loans taken from 

various parties, including those with whom legal cases are pending in court as of 

31.03.2025 and no agreements for the loans have been provided to us. “ASSO ~ 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been 

declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or 

government authority.; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the 

management, the Company has obtained term loans from financial institutions 

and the company has utilized the money obtained from term loans for which 

they were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have 

been raised on short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of 

the Order is not applicable.; 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financiai statements of the Company, we report that the 

Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 

meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 

2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.; 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures 

performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the 

year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the 

Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.; 

IPO and Private Placement/ Preferential Allotment: 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or 

further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of 

the Order is not applicable.; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made 

any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order 

is not applicable. ; 

Fraud Reporting: 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and 

according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the 

principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no 

fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during 

the course of the audit; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under 

sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by 

the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of 

our knowledge and belief, we have not come across any whistle blower 
. . . ASS 

complaints during the year. NO.     
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Nidhi Company: 

(xii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.; 

Related Party Transactions: 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 

188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related 

party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as 

required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards; 

Reporting on Internal Audit System: 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 

procedures, in our opinion, the company does have an internal audit system and 

internal audit reports have been made available to us. 

(b) The reports of the internal auditor for the period under audit was considered 

by the statutory auditor 

Non-Cash Transactions with Directors: 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 

directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 

192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.; 

Registration with RBI: 

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, company 
is registered as Non Banking Financial Company under section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, company was 

registered as Non Banking Financial Company under section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 

regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of 

the Order is not applicable; 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the 

course of audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements 

of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable; 

Cash Losses: 

(xvii) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the books of account, the company has incurred cash losses 

to the tune of Nil In the current financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

   

    

Resignation of Statutory Auditors: a BASSOD 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the en vA 

and this clause is not applicable ja i 
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Reporting on Liquidity: 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 

financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 

plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 

any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 

facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 

any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall 

due; 

Corporate Social Responsibility: 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, as the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 

applicable to the company, accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the 

Order are not applicable 

Reports of Consolidated Financial Statements: 

(xxi) The company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements; 

accordingly, clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

For DHANA & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

CA. Arun Khandelia 

Partner ( f 
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial 

Statements of M/s SPA CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED . 

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the 

members of M/s SPA CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED on the financial statements for the year 

ended 31% March, 2025. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SPA CAPITAL 

SERVICES LIMITED(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of 

the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls . 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 

and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10).of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ail 

material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend..on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financia! control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For DHANA & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI FRN : 510525C 

Phe 

  

CA. Arun Khandelia EE hS: ASSG> 

Partner {xj B® \e 

Membership No.089125 li oN Ren Dela & 

Place : New Delhi Xe NEN OILS 
Date :29.05.2025 “Steg Acc 
UDIN :25089125BMJMSX8907 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No: L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 2025 

(in Rs. Thousand) 
  

  

  

  

            
  

Particulars Note No. As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Assets 

Financial Assets 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 2,316 1,599 

(b) Trade Receivables 4 20,074 13,551 

(c) Loans 5 1,24,204 1,49,741 

(d) Investments 6 27,183 98,036 

(e) Other Financial assets 7 38,710 9,356 

Non-financial Assets 

(a) Inventories 8 1,66,601 1,46,938 

(b) Current tax assets (Net) 9 5,033 2,700 

(c} Deferred tax Assets (Net) 10 2,914 3,701 

(d) Property, Piant and Equipment 11 18,473 4,697 

(e) Other Intangible assets 11 2,870 781 

(f) Other Non Financial Asset 12 - - 

Total Assets 4,08,376 4,31,101 

Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

(a) Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

13 

ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 4,257 9,248 

and smal! enterprises 

(b) Borrowings 14 2,18,888 2,44,708 

(c) Other financial liabilities 15 2,161 1,138 

Non-Financial Liabilities 

(a) Provisions 16 11,776 9,808 

(b) Other non-financial liabilities 17 1,291 1,142 

Total Liabilities 2,38,373 266,043 

Equity and Liabilities 

Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 18 30,742 30,742 

(b) Other Equity 19 1,39,261 1,34,316 

Total Equity 1,70,003 1,65,058 

Total Liabilities and Equity 4,08,376 431,101 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the Financial Statements 1&2 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DHANA & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI FRN : 510525C    

   

  

CA. Arun Khandelia 

Partner 

Place : New Delhi 
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Company Secretary 
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Director     
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as at March 2025 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(in Rs. Thousand 
__ |Particulars Note No. For the Year For the Year 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Revenue from Operations 

Interest Income 20 4,201 141 
Sale of Services 20 1,97,055 1,44,349 
Sale of Shares & Securities 20 1,28,153 66,300 

Total Revenue from operations 
3,29,409 2,10,790 

Other Income 2] 0 16 
Total Income 

3,29,409 2,10,806 
Expenses 

Finance Costs 22 4,177 3,875 
Brokerage Expense 1,15,344 93,547 
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 

1,43,767 2,12,949 
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 (19,663) (1,46,913) 
Employee Benefit Expense 24 25,213 24,614 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 25 1,855 1,344 
Other Expenses 26 48,603 18,851 
Total Expenses 

3,19,295 2,08,267 
Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax 10,114 2,538 

Exceptional Items 27 - 625 
Extraordinary Items 

oe - 
Prior Period Items 28 2,069 0 
Profit before Tax 

8,046 1,913 

Tax Expenses 

i) Current Tax 9 2,550 500 
ii) Deferred Tax 10 788 (1,583) 
iii) Income Tax for earlier Years 

(237) (806) 
iv) Excess provision for earlier years - - 
Total Tax Expenses 

3,101 (1,889) 
Profit after Tax 

4,945 3,801 
Other Comprehensive Income 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - - 
(ii) Income tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to Profit / - - 
(Loss) 

Other Comprehensive Income net of tax - - 
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 4,945 . 3,801 
Earnings per equity share of Face Value of *10/- each 

Basic earnings per share (in *) 1.609 1,237 
Diluted earnings per share (in *) 1.609 1.237             See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
As per our report of even date attached 

For and 0 on n behalf of the Board 

For DHANA & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants . 

    

  

  

   ICAI FRN : 510525C deep Parwal Honey Parwal 
SESS Chairmdn cum Managing Dire Director 

fo EN DIN No. 00025803 DIN No. 00025835 [ ay lf 
~ A [ 

[oY Aas \e 
CA. Arun Khandelia aN {FRR : S10525C} + * 

on ‘Wi DELHI & x Partner A § 

Membership No.089125 Neoahe > Vaishnavi Sharma 
Place : New Delhi Company Secretary 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Dethi-110019 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement as at 31st March 2025 

  

  

  

        
  

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DHANA & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

    

    

  

- somes cy 

CA. Arun Khandelia ny SS 

Partner ge \ FRN: 510525C 
Membership No.089125 \°) \\-\/ DELN| 

as 

Place : New Delhi 

Date + 

  

(in Rs. Thousand) 

Note No. As at As at 
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

A Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit for the year before tax 8,046 1,913 

Adjustments for : - - 

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,855 1,344 

Loss on Sale of Asset - 625 

Investment Impaired - - 

Interest Income (4,201) (141) 

Finance Cost 4,177 3,875 

Operating profit before working capital changes - - 

Adjustments for working capital - - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (19,663) (1,46,913) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivable (6,522) . 2,439 

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans 25,538 1,90,444 

(increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets (29,354) - G43) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Current tax Assets (2,332) (530) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables (4,991) (17,940) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 1,969 (1,174) 

Increase / (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 149 (1,162) 

Net cash flow from operating activities (25,331) 32,438 

Direct tax paid (2,313) 306 

Net cash generated from Operating activities (A) (27,644) 32,744 

B_ Cash flow from investing activities o - 

Acquire of property, palnt and equipment (17,720) (1,871) 

Sale of property, palnt and equipment - 71 

Purchase/Sale of investments (Goodwill from purchse of subsidiaries) 70,854 (54,525) 

Interest received 4,201 141 

Net cash generated from /(used in) investing activities (B) $7,335 (56,184) 

C Cash flow from financing activities - - 

Finance Cost (4,177) (3,875) 

Borrowings (net) (24,797) 26,873 

Net cash (used in)/generated from Financing activities (C ) (28,973) 22,998 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 718 (443) 

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 1,599 2,041 

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 6 1,599 

Balance as per Balance Sheet /aeaae 1,599 
& ~ 

we Honey Patwal 

Director 

DIN No. 0002580 DIN No. 00025835 

owe 
Vv. navi Sharma 

  

Company Secretary 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
  

1 

11 

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies 

Corporate Information 

SPA Capital Services Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated on July 20, 1984 under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956: The Company is engaged in providing Wealth Management and Financial 

Advisory services to institutions, corporate and individuals. The Company is also registered with Reserve Bank of India as 

a Non-Deposit Accepting Non Banking Financial Institution. 

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS), under the 

historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The IndAS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 3 of 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair 

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. 

All assets and liabilities are classified as Current and Non-Current as per company’s normal operating cycle of 12 months 

which is based on the nature of business of the Company. Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected 

to be realised within one year and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after one year, the period of one 

year being reckoned from the reporting date. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted 

or are vision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

Rounding off 

All amounts in the financial statement and accompanying notes are presented in Lacs and have been rounded-off to two 

decimal place unless stated otherwise. 

Use of Estimates and Judgement 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgement and make estimates and 

assumptions that affects the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities. These estimates and 

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are 

known/materialise. 

The areas involving significant estimates and judgement include determination of useful life of Property, Plant and 

Equipment (Refer note 1.4), measurement of defined benefit obligations, and recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities 

(Refer note 5). 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of Property, Plant 

and Equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. 

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. In respect of major 

projects involving construction, related pre-cperational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalised. Expenses 

capitalised also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All Upgradation / enhancements are 

charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

S. No. Particulars Estimated Useful Life 

1 Leasehold land Over lease term 

2 Building other than factory 60 years 

3 Computers 

- Computers and other peripherals 3 years 

- Servers and networking 6 years 

4 Furniture & Fixtures 10 years 

5 Vehicles 8 years 

6 Other equipment 5 - 15 years 
    The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the expert's which are in line those 

specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the 

asset. The depreciation methods, assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the 

end of each reporting period. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is 

classified as capital advances under Other Non-Current Assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date is 

disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. 

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the 

asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.      
  69



  

  

SPA Capital Services Limited 
  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
  

2.4 

2.5 

2.6 

2.7 

  

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over 

their respective individual estimated -useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date they are available for use. The 

estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of 

obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known 

technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows 

from the asset. 

Investments : 

Investments are classified as Current or Non-Current based upon management intent at the time of acquisition. 

Investments that are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date of acquisition are classified as Current 

Investments. All other investments are classified as Non-Current Investments. 

Inventories 

The shares and securities acquired with the intention of trading are considered as Stock in trade and disclosed as Current 

Assets. The stock in trade of securities is valued at lower of aggregate cost or aggregate market price / aggregate net 

asset value in case of unquoted, as per the provisions of ICDS. The cost is determined on First in First Out (FIFO) basis. 

Financial Instruments, Financial Assets, Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments 

Recognition 

Financial assets include Investments, Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and Cash Equivalents. Such 

assets are initially recognised at transaction price when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The 

transaction price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being fair valued through the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Classification 

Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the assets 

were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on such classification. 

Financial assets are classified as those measured at: 

Amortised cost 

Where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and/ or interest. 

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

Where the financial assets are held not only for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but 

also from the sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses 

arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. 

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

Where the assets are managed in accordance with an approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale 

decisions based on the fair value of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised 

gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 

in which they arise. 

Measurement 

Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents etc. are classified for measurement at 

amortised cost while investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular 

investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable 

election at initial recognition may be made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive 

income. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried 

amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk. 

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial instruments, 

which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets 

A financial asset is derecognised only when 

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or 

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to 

pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 

rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 

the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 

Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of 

continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

Income Recognition 

Dividend income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive divide   
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
  

2.8 
(a) 

(b) 

2.9 

  

Offsetting Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 

and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 

enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 

counterparty. 

Financial Liabilities 

i) Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective contractual 

obligations. Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the 

end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and presented as current liabilities unless payment is 

not due within 12 months after the reporting period. 

ii) Borrowings 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 

expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to 

another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized 

in profit or loss as other gains/(losses). 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term 

loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand 

on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and 

before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

Equity Instruments 

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are 

shown in equity as deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

Revenue Recognition 

Sale of Shares & Securities 

Revenue from sales is recognized at the completion of each settlement of the capital market segment of the Stock 

In respect of non-delivery based transactions in capital market segment, the profit/loss is accounted for at the end of each 

settlement. 

Revenue from derivative market seqment:- 

- in respect of settled contracts the difference between the transaction price and settlement price is recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss; and 

- in respect of open interests as on the balance sheet date, the derivatives are valued at fair value, and the difference 

between the fair value and the transaction price, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Income from Dividend is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

Other Income 
Gain on Sale of Investment is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined as the difference between 

the sale price and carrying value of the investment. 
The revenue from Interest & Other Income is recognized on accrual basis as part of Other Income in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss. 

Employee Benefits 

a. Short-term Obligations 

Liabilities for wages, salaries and bonus, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 

employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 

liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

b. Post-Employment Obligations 

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 

- defined benefit plans for gratuity, and 

- defined contribution plans for provident fund. 

Defined Benefit_Plans 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the 

The net interest cost.is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the 

fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 

earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past 

service cost. 

Defined Contribution Plans 

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The 

Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for 

as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. 

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is 

available.   
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
  

2.10 

2.11 

2.12 

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the 

recoverable amount (i-e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual 

asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In 

such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Borrowing Costs 

Borrowings are measured at amortized cost. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as 

transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. To the 

extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as.a 

prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying asset are capitatised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended 

use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 

use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in 

the period in which they are incurred. 

Income Tax 

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the 

year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that 

are recognised in Other Comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively. 

(i) Current tax: 

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for current 

income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances, deductions and 

exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 

amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. 
  

  
(ii) Deferred tax: 

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised 

for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the 

time of the transaction. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 

which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 

utilised. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences except in respect of taxable 

temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures where the 

timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not 

reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 

liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabie right to set off current tax assets against 

current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends 

to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit forming part of deferred tax assets is recognised as an asset only when and to 

the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such 

asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the 

extent there is no longer a reasonable certainty to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the 

specified period. 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

2.13 |Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Income Tax 

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax 

Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax 

losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. 

According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax 

treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to 

be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable 

profit (tax loss}, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The standard permits two possible 

methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to 

each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C 

recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives. The effective date for adoption of Ind 

AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 

2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without 

adjusting comparatives. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the standalone financial 

statements. 

  

  

2.14 |Earnings Per Share 

a. Basic Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company 

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year 

b. Diluted Earnings Per Share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account 

the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the 

weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.15 |Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profitfloss for the period is adjusted for the effects of 

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 

item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 

and financing activities of the Company are segregated. : 

2.16 |Events occuring after the Balance Sheet date 

There have been no material events other than disclosed in the financial statements after reporting date which would 

require disclosure or adjustments to the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025. 

2.17 |Contingent Liablities 

Contingent liabilities represent possible obligations that may arise from past events and whose existence will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company. These are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow 

of resources is remote. 

The following contingent liabilities have not been provided for in the books of account as, in the opinion of the 

management and based on legal advice, the possibility of any outflow of resources is not probable: 

  

  

  

  

            Name of the Court / Tribunal- Case Ref No./Nature of the Amount Involved () Pending in the Court 

Litigant / Party Case 

1,Dhanlaxmi Metropolitian Megistrate-Kolkata 47744/2021 3,84,80,366 

Supply Pvt. Lid. CN-Complaint Case (North) Learned Judical Megistrate 

2.Aradhana Metropolitian Megistrate-Kolkata 23676/2021 7.76,86,916 
Barter Pvt. Ltd. CN-Complaint Case (North) anand Learned Judical Megistrate 

3.Viewpoint Metropolitian Megistrate-Kolkata 14171/2021 5,65,689 

Vyapaar Pvt Ltd CN-Complaint Case (North) Learned Judical Megistrate 

4.Zoom Barter Metropolitian Megistrate-Kolkata 10436/2021 253.13.013 ; 
PvtLtd . CN-Complaint Case (North) 4.7? Learned Judical Megistrate 

*All cases are ongoing in court as on date. ' | 
      
  

Forjand on behalf of the Board 

ores fornia § 
cep Parwal Horney Parwal 

As per our report of even date attached 

  

    For DHANA & ASSOCIATES 

  

     

Chartered Accountants Chairman cum Managing Direc irector 

ICAI FRN : 510525C J | ‘ DIN No. 00025803 DIN No. 00025835 

: Ze bSSON . wr : 
CA. Arun Khandelia [Lf ‘\ 

[=x/ . ? 
Partner fof ishnavi Sharma 

Membership No.089125 \ \ Company Secretary 
Place : New Delhi O\ EW DELHI 7) 

& 
Date : 29.05.2025 Qa we 
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UDIN : 25089125BMJMSX8907 g Act 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

3 

6.1 

6.2 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(in Rs, Thousand) 

  

  

  

Particulars As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Balances with Banks-Current Account 2,178 1,545 

Cash on Hand 138 53 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,316 1,599       
  

The Closing Bank balance includes cheque amounting to Rs. 8,253/- Which are subject to clearing as on date of signing Financial Statements, 

Trade Receivables 
  

Particulars As at 

31st March 2025 
As at 

31st March 2024 
  

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months 

(a) Trade Receivables 

Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 

Undisputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk 

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 

Disputed trade receivables considered good 

Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk 

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 

Others 

(b) Trade Receivables 

Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 

Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful 

Disputed trade receivables considered good 

Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful 

50 284 

    Total Trade Receivables     
  

Note: Impairment allowance recognised on Trade Receivables is Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil). 

Loans 
  

Particulars As at 

31st March 2025 

As at 

31st March 2024 
  

Loans at Amortised Cost 

To Body Corporates 

Unsecured, Considered Goods 

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 

To Others 

Unsecured, Considered Goods 

Total Gross 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

1,06,658 

5,500 

12,045 
1,24,204 

1,44,241 
5,500 

1,49,741 

  

Total Loans (Net) 1,24,204 1,49,741 
  

Investments 
  

Particulars As at 

31st March 2025 

As at 

31st March 2024 
    Investments Measured At Cost 

In India 

In equity shares of Associates (Unquoted, fully paid-up) 

Booming Investment Advisor Private Limited (54,34,238 shares Previous year 4,41,32,608 

Shares) 

Investments Measured At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCD 

in India 

In equity shares of other companies (Unquoted, fully paid-up) 

Impetus Analytic E solutions Pvt Ltd (13,10,000 Shares)   913   7All 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

  

Investments Measured At Amortised Cost 

In India 

Investment in Preference Shares of other companies 

  

  

  

  

        
  

  

  

        
  

  

  

        
  

  

  

  

  

  

        
  

  

  

  

Arete Securities Limited Nil (Previous year 361,000) Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 36,100 

Total of Investments in Preference Shares - 36,100 

Parth Infracon Pvt. Ltd. (OCD)* - 52,200 
(Parth Infracon Pvt. Ltd. Nil (Previous Year 522) 

Egaro Surety Private Limited 2,325 2,325 
(Equaro Surety Pvt. Ltd. (75000 Equity Shares of Rs, 31 each) 

Ambition Hire Pvt Ltd 1,010 - 

(Ambition Hire Pvt Ltd 11,000 (Previous Year Nil) 10000 shares @ Rs. I per share and 1000 

shares @ 1000 per share 

SPA Capital Advisor Limited 22,935 - 

(SPA Capital Advisors Ltd 458,700 (Previous Year Nil) 458700 shares @ Rs. 50 each 

Total Investments 27,183 98,036 

Other Financial Assets 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Advance Recoverable in Cash or Kind 628 2,077 

(to employees) 

Advance Recoverable in Cash or Kind - - 

(Other Than employees) 
- Unsecured, Considered Good 36,626 3,614 

- Unsecured, Considered Doubtful - - 

Prepaid Expensees 476 177 

Security Deposit 981 3,488 

Total Other Financial Assets 38,710 9,356 

Inventories 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Stock of Shares & Securities 1,66,601 1,46,938 

Total Inventories 1,66,601 4,46,938 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars As at As at 

3st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Balance with Revenue Authorities 5,033 2,700 

Total Current Tax Assets (Net) 5,033 2,700 

Movement in Deferred tax Asset/ liabilities(Net) 

Particulars As at AS at 

31st Mareh 2025 31st March 2024 

At the beginning of the year 3,701 2,118 

Credit/ (Charge) to Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note 29) (788) 1,583 

Credit/ (Charge) to Other Comprehensive income - - 

Movement in MAT Credit - - 

At the end of the year 

- to Other Comprehensive Income 

At 31st March 2025 2,914 3,701 

Other Non Financial Asset 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Deferred Lease Rental - - 

Total - -       
  

    

  
  

  
 



Trade Receivables schedule as at 31st 

    

Particulars 

Trade receivables —considered 

credit risk 

U Trade Receivables — credit impaired 

trade receivables considered 
Tr 

risk 

Trade Receivables — credit fred 

4.1) Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2024 

SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Rs.     
Outstanding for from due date of 

6 months -1 

More than 3 Less than 6 months 2-3 

(in Rs. Thousand) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars 6 months -1 

Less than 6 months year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

Undisputed Trade receivables —-considered good 13,268 122 27 85 SO 13,552 

Undisputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in 

credit risk - 

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 

Disputed trade receivables considered good - 

Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in 

credit risk ° 

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 

13,268 122 27 85 50 13,552                 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

13 Trade Payables 

(in Rs. Thousand) 

  

Particulars 
As at 

31st March 2025 

As at 

31st March 2024 
  

Trade Payables 

(a) Due to MSME 

(b) Due to Others 

(c) Disputed dues to MSME 

(d).Disputed dues to Others 

* For Ageing refer Note 13.1 

4,237 9,248 

    Total Trade Payables   4.257   9.248 
  

Note : Steps have been taken to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. Since no intimation has been received from the 
suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as at 31st March 2025, disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year 

end, if any, have not been furnished. In the opinion of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material. 

14 Borrowings 
  

  

  

  

        
  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars Effective interest As at As at 

rate 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Secured (Repayable on Demand) 
i) Bank Overdrafts - - 

ii) Working Capital Loan* 20,931 46,897 

iii) Car Loan 7,715 1,426 

Unsecured (Repayable on Demand) 

i) From Body Corporate 1,54,546 1,73,202 

ii) From Related Parties 35,696 23,182 

Total Borrowings 218,888 244,708 

Borrowings in India 2,18,888 2,44,708 

Borrowings outside India 4 3 
Total 218,888 2,44,708 

Secured Borrowings and Assets Pledged as Security 

15 Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Salary Payable 2,161 1,138 

Total Other Financial Liabilities 2,161 1,138 

16 Provisions 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Provision for Gratuity 3,458 3,442 

Provision for Income Tax 2,550 500 

Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 268 366 

Contingent Provision against Doubtful Debts 5,500 5,500 

Total Provisions 11,776 9,808     
  

    *In accordance with the Master Direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 (updated on February 17, 2020) issued by The 

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide its directions to all NBFC’s to make a general provision of 0.25% on the Standard assets, the 

Company has made a provision of Rs. 268 (Previous Year Rs. 366/-) 
  

  

17 Other Non Financial Liabilities 

[** A provision of 100% made against Unsecured, Considered Doubtful assets 

  

  

        

Particul As at As at 

articulars 31st March 2025 3ist March 2024 
Current 

(a) Statutory Liability 927 261 

(b) Expenses Payable 364 881 

Total Other Financial Liabilities 1291 1,142 
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13.1) Trade Payables Ageing Schedule : As at 31st March, 2025 

SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

(in Rs. Thousand) 
  

  

  

  

                
  

  

  

  

  

  

                
  

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from 

Due for 1-2 Due for 2-3 |Due for more 

Less than 1 Year Years Years than 3 Years Total 

Due to MSME - “ - - 0 

Due to Others 1,799 - - 2,458 4,257 

Disputed dues to MSME - “ : - 0 

Disputed dues to Others - - - - 0 

1,799 - : 2,458 4,257 

13.1) Trade Payables Ageing Schedule : As at 31st March, 2024 (in Rs. Thousand) 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from 

Duefor1-2 | Duefor2-3  |Due for more 

Less than 1 Year Years Years than 3 Years Total 

Due to MSME : + : - : 

Due to Others 2,440 4,350 0 2,458 9,248 

Disputed dues to MSME - - : - : 

Disputed dues to Others - x - - - 

2,440 4,350 0 2,458 9,248 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

18 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

  

  

  

  

          
  

  

  

  

  

(In Rs. Thousand 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

Authorised 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,00,000 50,000 50,00,000 50,00 

(March 31, 2024: 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up 

30,74,225 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 30,74,225 30,742 30,74,225 30,74: 

(March 31, 2024: 30,74,225 Equity shares of Rs.10 each) 

Total 30,74,225 30,742 30,74,225 30,742 

A) Reconciliation of number of Ordinary Shares outstanding: 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

As at beginning of the year 30,74,225 30,742 30,74,225 30,74. 

Issue of Shares - - - - 

Shares bought back during the year - - - - 

As at end of the year 30,74,225 30,742 30,74,225 30,742         
  

Terms and rights attached to Equity Shares 

  

The Company has only one class of equity share with voting rights having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote pe 

share. The shareholders have equal right in dividend as and when declared by the Company subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annuz 

General Meeting. Members of the Company holding equity share capital therein have a right to vote on every resolution placed before the Company and righ 

to receive dividend. The voting rights on a poll is in proportion to the share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company held by the shareholders. In th 

event of liquidation of the Compnay, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of al 

preferential amounts.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

B) Details of Shareholders Holding more than 5% shares in the Company 
  

  

  

  

Name of Shareholders As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

Number of shares Percentage holding} Number of shares Percentag 
holdin: 

Dhrubtara Trading Private Limited 5,86,250 19.07% 5,86,250 19.07% 

Defiant Enterprises Private Limited 5,68,750 18.50% 5,68,750 18.509 

Sandeep Parwal 2,52,525 8.21% 252,525 8.21% 

Kamal Kishore Somani 2,10,175 6.83% 2,10,175 6.839 
Honey Parwal 1,75,000 5.69% 1,75,000 5.699       
  

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from the shareholders regarding beneficial 

interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. 

The Company has not alloted any shares without payment being received in cash and has neither alloted any fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares nor 

has bought back any class of shares during the period of five years immediately precee i the balance sheet date. 
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A. Equity Share Capital 

SPA Capital Sérvices Limited 
Statement Of Changes In Equity 

25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

For The Year Ended 31st March 2025 

  

  

  

  

              
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

  

        
     

2023-24 
Balance at the beginning of the current Changes in Restated Changes in Balance at the 

reporting period Equity Share |balance atthe [equity share end of the 
Capital due to | beginning of the |capital during current 
prior period {current the current year |reporting 
errors reporting period period 

30,742 - 30,742 - 30,742 

2024-25 
Balance at the beginning of the current Changes in Restated Changes in Balance at the 

reporting period Equity Share {balance atthe |equity share end of the 
Capital due to |beginning of the |capital during current 
prior period {current the current year [reporting 

errors reporting period period 

30,742 - 30,742 - 30,742 

B. Other Equity 

2023-2024 

Attributable to owners of SPA Capital Services Limited 
Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income 

Equity instruments 

Description Securities . Remeasurement at fair value Total Other 

Premium Retained General Reserve Reserve of defined through other Equity 
Earnings Fund(NBFC) Benefit . 

Reserve «ge comprehensive 
Obligation vg 

income 

Balance as at I April 2023 2,500 16,025 1,18,152 6,937 - (13,100) 1,30,514 

Profit for the year - 3,801 - - - - 3,801 
other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - - 

Transations with owners in their capacity as 

owners - : - - - - - 
Transfer in/out General Reserve - - - - - . - 

Transfer in/out Retained Earnings - (760) - : : - (760) 
Trasnfer In/Out Reserve Fund{ NBFC) 760 760 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,500 19,066 1,18,152 7,697 - 13,100 1,34,316 

2024-2025 

Attributable to owners of SPA Capital Services Limited 
Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income 

Equity instruments 
Description Securities . Reapeasurement at fair value Total Other 

Premium Retained General Reserve Reserve of defined through other Equity 
Earnings Fund(NBFC) Benefit . 

Reserve caer comprehensive 
Obligation : 

income 

Balance as at 1 April 2024 2,500 19,066 1,18,152 7,697 - 13,100 134,316 
Profit for the year - 4,945 - - - - 4,945 

Any other changes - - - - - - - 
other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - . 
Transations with owners in their capacity as 

owners - = - - - : - 

Transfer in/out General Reserve - - - - - - - 
Transfer in/out Retained Earnings (989) (989) 

Trasnfer In/Out Reserve Fund(NBFC) - - - 989 : 989 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,500 23,022 1,18,152 (13,100) 1,39,261 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 
Ww 

For DHANA & ASSOCIATES ‘Honey Parw 

Chartered Accountants Chaira% Director 

CA. Arun Khandelia 

Partner 
Membership No.089125 
Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2025 

UDIN : 25089125BMJMSX8907 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 
25 C Block, Community Center, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 

CIN No : L65910DL1984PLC018749 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Revenue From Operations 

(in Rs. Thousand) 

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

For the year For the year 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

At Amortised Cost 

Interest Income 

-on loans 4,201 141 

Sale of Services 1,97,055 1,44,349 

Sale of Shares & Securities 1,28,153 66,300 

Total Revenue From Operations 3,29,409 2,10,790 

Other Income 
, For the year For the year 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Interest on IT Refund - 16 

Earlier Year Income - - 

Miscellaneous Income 0 0 

Total Other Income | 0 16 

Finance Cost 

Particulars For the year For the year 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: 

-Interest Expenses 4,161 3,814 

-Interest on TDS 0 10 

Bank Charges 16 50 

Total Finance Cost 4,177 3,875 

Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade of Shares & Securities 

. For the year For the year 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Opening Balance 

Shares & Securities - Bonds 1,42,074 25 

Shares & Securities - Equity 0 0 

Shares & Securities - Mutual Funds 4,864 - 

Total Opening Balance 1,46,937.66 25 

Closing Balance 

Shares & Securities - Bonds 1,29,661 1,42,074 

Shares & Securities - Equity 922 0 

Shares & Securities - Mutual Fund 36,018 4,864 

Total Closing Balance 1,66,601 1,46,938 

Total Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade (19,663) (1,46,913) 

Employee Benefit Expense 

. For the year For the year 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 20,748 20,081 

Directors Remuneration 3,600 3,600 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 316 538 

Contribution to Gratuity Fund 268 (42) 

Staff Welfare Expenses 280 436 

Total Employee Benefit Expense 25,213 24,614 
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SPA Capital Services Limited 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
  

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

        

  

  

  

  

        

Pa rticulars For the year For the year 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,259 1,225 

Amortization of Intangible Assets 596 118 

Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 1,855 1,344 

Other Expenses 

. For the year For the year 

cohen 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Operational Expenses 

Power and Fuel 600 640 

Fees & subscription 940 555 

Membership Fees 117 139 

1,658 1,334 

Advertising & Publicity Expenses 48 142 

Computer & Software Expenses 2,068 1,528 

Bad Debts written off - 2 

Books and Periodicals - 0 

Business Promotion 8,078 5,100 

Marketing Expenses 1,510 - 

Filing Fees 8 4 

Insurance 83 37 

Processing Fees 15 606 

Legal & Professional Charges 25,830 1,050 

Miscellaneous Expenses 95 59 

Postage, Telephone & telex etc. 358 427 

Penalty 1 12 

Office Expenses 16 9 

Repairs and Maintenance - - 
Repair and maintenance - Building - 73 

Repair and maintenance - Others 54 59 

Repair and maintenance - PNM 602 596 

Repair and Maintenance - COMP 81 22 

Security Forfeited - 1,525 
Travelling and Conveyance 2,743 1,142 

Foreign Tour Expenses 3,185 - 

Rent Paid 1,468 1,159 

Printing and Stationary 93 202 
Sundry Balance Writtern Off - 1,614 

Audit Fees 200 200 
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Asset 

Tax Audit Fees 25 — 25 

Listing Fees 325 325 

Contingent provision against Doubtful Asset - 2,000 

Contingent provision against Standard Asset (98) (477) 

Festival Expenses 155 78 

46,945 17,517 

Total Other Expenses 48,603 | 18,851 

Exceptional Iteams 

Loss/Profit) on sale of Asset - 625 

- 625     

Business Promotion Expenses 

0525C J 
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29. Financial Ratios 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

For the year ended 
Ratios/Measure March 31,2025 March 31,2024 Change(%) Reasons for Change 

Due to Increase in Trade Receivables & Other 
a. Current Ratio: 29.54 14.87 99% Financial Assets 

Not Applicable b. Debt-Equity Ratio 1.29 1.48 -13% 

Due to Increase in Profit c. Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2,93 1.50 96% 

Due to Increase in Profit d. Return on Equity Ratio 0.03 0.02 27% ‘ 

e. Inventory Turnover Ratio 
Not Applicable 

f. Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 19.59 14.27 37% Due to Increase in Revenue 

g. Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 
- 

h. Net Capital Turnover Ratio 1.94 1.28 52% Due to Increase in Revenue 

i. Net Profit Ratio 0.02 0.02 -17% Not Applicable 

j. Return on Capital Employed 0.02 0.00 343% Due to Increase in PAT 

k. Return on Investment           
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Note: 30 

Related Party Disclosures: 

(a) Holding Company / Associate Company 

SPA Investment Adviser Private Limited (Associate Company) 

(b) Directors and Key Management Personnel/Relative 

1. Mr. Sandeep Parwal Chairman Cum Managing Director 

2. Mr. Mahaveer Prasad Mundhra Independent Director 

3. Mr. Kanav Parwal Related to Director 

4, Ms Kanika Parwal Related to Director 
5. Ms. Nitya Kabra Related to Director 

6. Ms. Sugeeta Upadhyay Independent Director 

7. Mrs. Honey Parwal Woman Director (Non-Executive Director) 

8. Mr. Manish Kumar Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

(c) 
their relative have control or significant influence; 

Defiant Enterprises Private Limited 

Dhrubtara Trading Private Limited 

R.P. Computer Forms Private Limited 

Vijay Shree Builders Private Limited 

Bluemoon Financial Services Private Limited 

Penguin Developers Private Limited 

Wintech Marketing Private Limited 
Simplex Construction Private Limited 

Niveshak MPowered Private Limited 

10. Bhoopati:- Trading Private Limited 

11. Jagriti Buildtech Private Limited 

12. Parth Infracon Private Limited 

13. SPA Capital Advisors Limited 

14. SPA Valuation Advisors Private Limited 

15. Haryana Sultans Promotions Private Limited 

16. Sansaar Warehousing & Logistic Parks Private Limited 

17. SPA Insurance Broking Services Limited 

18. SPA Investment Adviser Private Limited 

19. New Age Knowledge Solutions Limited 

20. Zenlads Enterprises LLP 

W
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(d) Transactions with Related Parties 

Companies in which Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (excluding CS and CFO) or 

(in Rs. Thousands) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

Sr. Nature of Transaction During the year Balance Outstanding 

No. as on 

Name of Related Party 2024- 2023- 31- | 31-Mar-24 
2025 2024 | Mar-25 . 

Directors 

Remuneration 3,600 3,600 228 - 

1 | Sandeep Parwal (MD) Loan Paid & Refund 1,700 (1,054) | - - 
Reimbursement of 

Expenses : 20 : - 

Remuneration “ 1,000 - - 

2 Mr. Kanav Parwal Loan Paid _--~~|. (1,200) | 100 76 1,276 
7. hoon 

Interest Income «~~ x       

® *     
 



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                    

3__| Manish Kumar (CS) Salary Paid 1,103 831 73 | 92 

Salary Paid 1,774 600 128 - 

4 | Nitya Kabra Professional Fees Paid 265 - - - 

Advance against salary - 114 : 114 

Bhoopati Trading Private 

5 Limited Loan Repaid 17,756 (4) - 17,756 

R P Computer Forms Loan Taken & Returned - (425) - 5,970 
6 Private Limited Back 5,970 1,025 . . 

. : Loan Paid & Refund - 100 - ; 
Simplex Construction - (500) - - 

Private Limited Security Deposit for 
7 Office - 35 - : 

Loan Paid & Refund Bee00 25,208 : = 
SPA Insurance Broking - (33,226) | - : 
Services Limited Loan Received 7,500 . 7,500 - 

8 Interest Paid 2 - 2 - 

Brokerage Paid - 3,846 - 4,350 

SPA Investment Adviser Loan Taken 5,500 750 - 13,623 

Private Limited Loan Returned Back (19,173) - - - 

Advance Brokerage 
9 Paid 50 - 50 - 

Rent Paid* 777 777 296 296 

Vijay Shree Builders Loan Taken & Returned 

Private Limited ‘Back 1,343 - - - 
Security Deposit for 

10 Office - - 3,257 

Security Deposit for 

Office - 2,000 - - 

Wintech Marketing Private | Brokerage Paid* 7,882 | 8,827 400 - 
Limited 7477 

Loan Paid & Refund** : , - 2 
11 - 12,177) - - 

Loan Paid & Refund 27,500 6,034 ; 
(27,500) (6,470) - - 

12 SPA Capital Advisors Loan Taken & Returned 31,039 7,338 27,939 3,715 

Limited Back (6,690) (3,623) . . 

Interest Paid 284 - 255 - 

Reimbursement of Exp. | - 125 - - 

Security Deposit for 

Office - - 45 45 
13 eum Developers Pvt Rent Paid* 300 180 7 7 

Advance Paid 383 - | 383 - 

Reimbursement of Exp. - 16 - : 

Brokerage Paid* 40,766 35,495 - 2,220 
Niveshak M Powered ; 
Private Limited Loan Paid 8,780 : 8,780 : 

14 Reimbursement of Exp. 65 59 - - 
  

  
 



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              
  

Advance Given and 450 6,422 - - 

Received Back (450) (1,331) - - 

Brokerage Paid 16,594 - |- - 

15 | Parth Infracon Pvt. Ltd. Loan Given*** . 35,000 . . 

Reimbursement of Loan 

sanction charges - (391) - : 

Loan Repaid**** - (52,200) - - 

Loan Paid & Refund - 175 - - 
SPA Valuation Advisors - (425) - - 

16 
Pvt. Ltd. Fees Received* 3,269 - 2,832 on 

Reimbursement of Exp. - 19 |. - : 

17 Haryana Sultan Promotions 

Private Limited Loan Paid - 21,920 | 21,920 21,920 

18 | Zenlads Enterprises LLP Loan Paid - 9,501 9,501 9,501 

* Inclusive of GST 

** Brokerage amount adjusted with Loan Amount 

*** Loan received from Yes bank of 3.54 Crore against Property owned by Parth Infracon Pvt. Ltd. 

**** Loan and advances of 5.22 Crore converted into OCD 

30 .Supplementary statutory information 

30.1. The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipments during the year. 

30.2 There is no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of 

Companies beyond the statutory period. 

30.3. The Company has no relationship/transaction with Companies struck off under 

section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

30.4 There is no scheme of arrangement in term of section 230 to 237 of the companies 
act 2013 

30.5 ‘All figures are rounded off to the nearest thousands. 

30.6 The accompanying Notes from 1 to 30 are forming integral part of the financial 

Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached For and Behalf of the Board of Directors 

For DHANA & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI FRN : 510525C 

   
     

    

  

  

Ne NA , Horéy Parwal 

" \« coy | Director Director 

CA. Arun Khandelia Xe DIN No. 00025803 DIN No. 00025835 
{rer Acc? a . 

Partner 

Membership No.089125 yr 
V navi Sharma 

Place : New Delhi Company Secretary 

Date: 

87 

 


	Filing of Annual Report.pdf
	Dear Sir/Madam,
	Sub: Submission of Annual Report pursuant to Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015


		2025-09-03T11:34:32+0530
	Vaishnavi Sharma




